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From: Jon Grayson <Jon.Grayson@premiers.qld.gov.au>

Sent: Tuesday, 17 April 2012 6:39 AM

To: Ben Myers

Cc: Anthony Crack

Subject: Re: Contact with Lobbyists Register and air charter costs
Ben

Do you want to discuss at our 8am with the Premier?

| think on balance the charter is best. No one has focused on the issue of whethercommercia! flights are viable. In
this regard, | understand Monto strip is 85km from Thangool.

IDG
Sent from my iPhone

On 16/04/2012, at 8:30 PM, "Ben Myers" <Ben.Myers@ministeriab.ald.goviad> wrote:

Anthony
[ understand the meeting will be cancelled.

Thanks
Ben

From: Anthony Crack [mailto:Anthony.Crack@premiers.qld.gov.au]
Sent: Monday, 16 April 2012 5:41 PM

To: Jon Grayson; Ben Myers

Subject: FW: Contact with Lobbyists Register and air charter costs

Jon and Ben

For your information thé-Deputy Premier has requested to meet Tim tomorrow to discuss potential
changes to the Government Airswing guidelines

Anthony Crack
Acting Deputy Director-Genoral Governance
Department of the Premier and Cabinet

Telephone: {07) 32246067\ Mobile]CTPI

From: Jeff Popp [mailto:Jeff.Popp@ministerial.gld.gov.au]
Sent: Monday, 16 April 2012 5:17 PM ‘

To: Tim Herbert
Subject: RE: Contact with Lobbyists Register and air chatter costs

Tim,
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Thanks for that. The Deputy Premier has discussed this with the Premier, and would like to speak
to you regarding modifying the guidelines. Do you have a couple of minutes at 9:30 tomorrow
morning to discuss with the Deputy Premier?

Regards,

Jeff.

From: Tim Herbert [mailto:Tim.Herbert@premiers.gld.gov.au]
Sent: Monday, 16 April 2012 1(:33 AM

To: Jeff Popp

Cc: Anthony Crack; Ben Myers

Subject: RE: Contact with Lobbyists Register and air charter costs

Jeff, apologies for the delay in getting back. Details of the costs comparison between the
King Air and Air Charter are below.

Hope it assists and happy to discuss.

Regards
Tim

King Air

There are two methods for calculating costs of flying the King \Air to and from Monto: 1) Cost
Recovery basis or 2) Full Operation Cost basis; as follows;

1) Cost Recovery Basis:

This method of calculation is based onthe netcosts’ of flying the aircraft to and from
Monto. That is, it does not include saldries forpilots or borrowing costs and is the amount
that is charged on a cost recovery basis jf the King Air is used by other agencies (e.g.
Health for organ retrieval).

The cheapest method for the King Air to Tiy t6 Monto on a Friday and return to Brisbane on
the Monday would be for the pilots/to-stay in Monto aver the weekend. On this basis, you
_ could assume approximately ene’full round trip per week — say 50 trips per year.

A return cost of a trip to Monto is $3349.00 (based on net cost recovery figure of $2009.10
per hour). Crew accommodation meal costs for weekend stay would need to be added,
providing the following calculation per round trip:

Aircraft Cost {King Air): $3349.00
Crew (2) Accomimodation/Meals: $1225.80
Total: $4,574.80

Muitiply by-504veekly trips per annum = $228,740

The above calculation assumes the King Air stays on the ground in Monto until required for
the return trip to Brishane. However, if the aircraft is required to retumn to Brishane for any
reason {e.g. organ retrieval) and then return to Monto, then the cost of the further round trip
back to Brisbane would have to be factored in per trip (i.e. add a further $3349 to the weekly
cost).

2) Full Operation Cost:

A return cost of a trip to Monto is $7663.00 (based on full cost operation figure of $4598 per
hour, takes into account crew salaries, borrowing costs etc). Using the above calculations
2
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(taking into account crew accommodation) one round trip would cost $8888.80 and for 50
trips would be $444, 440.

Again, the above calculation assumes the King Air stays on the ground in Monto until
required for the return trip to Brisbane. However, if the aircraft is required to return to
Brisbane for any reason {e.g. organ retrieval) and then return to Monto, then the cost of the
further round trip back to Brisbane would have to be factored in per trip (i.e. add a further
$7663 to the weekly cost).

Given your request was for the net extra operating costs of the King Air vs it staying on the
ground in Brisbane, it seems that the cost recovery basis for calculating the cost of flying the
King Air to and from Monto (i.e. option 1) would be the most appropriate one to use.

Air Charter

By way of comparison to the costs of Air Charter for the same trip below are-the figures 1
sent to you previously:

Return charter Brisbane to Monto  $6,655

Brokerage fee $482
Total $7,137

50 weekly retums per annum $356,850.

Tim Herbert

Executive Director

State Affairs

Department of the Premier and Cahinet
Ph: 340 43654

Email: Tim.Herbert@premiers.qgid.gov.au

From: Jeff Popp [mailto:Jeff, Popp@ministerial{gld.gov.au]

Sent: Monday, 16 April 2012 9:25.AM

To: Tim Herbert

Subject: RE: Contact with-|obbyists Register and air charter costs

Tim,
I hope you had 2/géadweekend, where are we up to with finalising this one?

Cheers,

Jeff,

From: Tim Herbert imaiito: Tim.Herbert@premiers.gld.gov.au]
Sent: Friday, 30 March 2012 1;55 PM

To: Jeff Popp

€Cc: Antheny Crack; Ian Street

Subject: Contact with Lobbyists Register and air charter costs

Hi Jeff, as requested, here is a suggested template for any use in recording contact with
lobbyists. Just to confirm, we are yet to brief the Premier on this so not sure what the
position will be in terms of ministerial offices using this template fo record any contact with
lobbyists. I'll let you know when we receive some direction.

3
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Also, following on from my briefing to the Deputy Premier last night, as requested, below is
the cost estimate for yearly Air Charter:

Return charter Brisbane to Monto $6,655
Brokerage fee $482
Total $7,137
50 weekly returns per annum $356,850

Hope it assists and happy to discuss.

Regards
Tim

Tim Herbert

Executive Director

State Affairs

Department of the Premier and Cabinet
Ph: 340 43654

Email: Tim.Herbert@premiers.qgld.gov.au

Tomorrow's Queensiand: strong, green, smart, healthy and fair - www.toward@2.qld.gov.au

This email is intended only fgr the addrégsee. Its use is limited to that
intended by the author at thé/time/and it is not
toe be distributed without thesauthor's consent.

Unless otherwise stated, the \Stateof Queensland accepts no liability for
the contents of this email expept where

subsequently confirmed 4n wifiting/ The cpinions expressed in this email
are those of the author and/do not necessarily

represent the views of the State of Queensland. This email is confidential
and may be subjeck tc a claim/of legal privilege.

If you have regeived-this email in error, please notify the authcr and
delete this mgssage immediately.

This email, together with any attachments, is intended for the named
recipient (s) /enly: and may contain privileged and confidential
inforntation/ /If received in error, you are asked to inform the sender as
guickly ag possible and delete this email and any copiles of this from your
computer system netwoerk.

If not an intended recipient of this email, vou must nct copy, distribute
or take any action{s) that relies on it; any form of disclosure,
modification, distribution and /or publiicaticon of this email is also
prohibited.

Unless stated otherwise, this email represents only the views of the
sender and not the views of the Queensland Government.

Please consider the environment before printing this email.
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PREMIER’S BRIEFING NOTE Tracking Folder No, TF/12/10934
Governance Document No. DOCH2/87828

To: THE PREMIER ' Approved / Not Approved [ Noted
Date: 8 May 2012 PrEMIEE oo e,

Subject: Government Air Wing

Thisdocument has been released under theRIGHT TOINFQRMATION-ACT 2009 (QId)

Date cndndo

Date Action Required by: ...../J..../.....

Requested by: ....ocoiivicininnnnnnnnn..
{if appropriats) i

« RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that you:

note the operational information regarding the Government Aip'Wing (GAW) in and
attached to this briefing note

approve the conduct of a comprehensive review regarding the GAWmodel with a
view to identifying any other more economical and efficient medels-to provide air
wing services to the Government :

approve that as an interim measure, the GAW Guidelines be-arnended to provide
greater flexibility for the allocation and tasking of the-aircraft.

« KEY ISSUES

You have requested operational information regarding the GAW including staff
numbers, costs, operating guidelines, future plans and historical tasking levels.

GAW Operational Environment and Guidelines

Under the current GAW Guidelines (at Attachment A) the GAW provides fixed wing
air services to meet the aviation transport negeds of the Premier, Ministers and the
Governor and emergency negds, which include organ transplant retrievals and
search and rescue (SAR) services(Para. 5.1.1).

The GAW operates from a faciiity at Brisbane Airport, collocated with the
Queensland Police Air'Wing. The GAW operates two fixed wing aircraft being a
Hawker Jet and a King Airturbe-prop. The Police Air Wing operates six fixed wing
aircraft (One CesnaJet; ithree Cesna turbo props, one Beechcraft turbo prop and
one Britten Norman Islander turbo prop) in support of the QPS, including police
travel, persons-in custody transport and Circuit Court activities.

The GAW currently-has eight staff, consisting of the Chief Pilot and five other pilots,
an aircraft-engineer and senior administration officer (Attachment B). The
Queensland GAW model is very similar to that provided in Western Australia.

Aircrafttasking and usage

The twd aircraft are available for use by the Premier and Ministers, the Governor
and-Head of the Reconstruction Authority, in accordance with the Guidelines.
Generaily,,)commercial travel should be considered as a first option but the
Guidelines recognise that due to the substantial time constraints placed on the
Premier, use of commercial airlines will rarely be practical and need not be
considered as a prerequisite for the Premier’s use of the aircraft.

In terms of general usége of the aircraft, a summary of the total usage (both aircraft)
for the past two financial years and year-to-date for 2012 is as follows:

o 2009-10 - total of 601 flying hours;

Action Officer; Tim Herbert Approvais by Director /ED / DDG
Area: State Affairs decumented in nofes in TRIM
Telephone: 32243654
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o 2010-11 — total of 635 flying hours
o To 31 March 2012 - total of 390 flying hours.

— Details of this usage, at Attachment C, show that the highest usage is attributable
to ministerial transport, followed by organ retrieval, Governor’s transport, police
transport, counter disaster and SAR. requirements.

— The overriding principle for the allocation of aircraft is that first priority will always be
given to emergency tasks and that an approved request may be cancelled at short
notice if an emergency task eventuates (Para. 5.2.1.).

—~ Ministerial use of the aircraft has also trended downwards over the past three years
(see tables and graphs showing yearly and monthly usage-at-Attachment C). In
interpreting this data, it should be noted that usage is cyciical and-demiand driven.
For example, usage is low during parliamentary recessés, particularly over the
December/January period and high during flood/cyclone peftiods. Low usage of the

Jet also occurred in January 2012 due to engine maintenance: '

GAW Costs

~ In terms of financial commitment, the GAW receives appropriation each year of
approximately $4.5M. Estimated revenue of $0.200M for organ retrieval flights and

SAR is included in the total annual budget of $4.7M.|°™""
CTPI

— In terms of hourly charge out fee for organ retrieval flights and SAR, a rate has
been determined based on a recovery cost model of $2,009 per hour for the King
Air and $3,349 per hour for the Hawker Jet, adjusted annually for CP| increases.

— By comparison, approximate commercial Air Charter costs per hour for a King Air
are $3,500 and fora‘HawkerJet;/$5,500. These figures will vary markedly
depending on individual fiight circumstances and reflect the inclusion of a profit
margin, when compared the GAW’s recovery cost model.

— Because the GAW does not operate at full capacity (as a commercial entity would)
_the actual cost per houy based on full annual cost divided by annual number of
flying hours, produces a very inflated hourly charge in the vicinity of $4,600 and
$6,900 respectively. This would vary depending on hours flown in any one year.
CTPI

Future Plans and a Proposed Review

— Both aircraft are approximately six years old and in very good condition, with all
scheduled maintenance completed, including Jet engine major periodic inspections
and service in last December/January at a cost of $68,671.

— While the aircraft can continue in service for many years, maintenance costs will

Action Officer: Tim Herbert Approvals by Director /ED / DDG
Area: State Affairs documented in notes in TRIM
Telephone; 32243654 '
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PREMIER’S BRIEFING NOTE Tracking Folder No. TF/12/10934
Governance

Document No, DOC/12/87828

continue to increase as the aircraft age, and both aircraft are now out of the five- -
year warranty period. Previous GAW aircraft were replaced at the 6 -9 years of age
bracket, after warranty expiry and as maintenance costs increased.

— ltis considered timely to fully examine the role of the GAW with a view to identifying
any other more economical and efficient models to provide air wing services to the
Government. For example, while the GAW and Police Air Wing collocate, they are
operationally separate. Emergency Management Queensland also operates four
helicopter services out of Brisbane (two), Townsville (one) and Cairns (one). One
option would be to create an internal integrated model which damalgamates these
three separate government air services into one overarching air service model.

— Another option would be to outsource ministerial air support providedto a
commercial third party, by either disposing of the current-aircraft and/contracting the
use of other ai.rcraft, or by using the current assets on la more commercial basis.

- Given the specialised nature of the industry, it is recommended that an industry
~ expert be engaged to investigate and assess the efficiency and effectiveness of the
current model and to provide recommendations'as to the-most efficient and cost
effective model to meet the Government's air support’and services needs. It is
considered that this review should cover ali of the three above mentioned air
support services so efficiencies through economies/of scale can be examined.

- — Should you approve this review being undertaken,/DPC will provide you with a
further brief outlining terms of reference and suggested names of industry experts
to conduct the review, as soon as.pessible.

A Proposed Interim Measure

- It is noted that the former Gavernment’s GAW Guidelines are somewhat restrictive
and inflexible and as such, with {our approval they could be amended to provide
greater flexibility in the vse of the-aircraft pending the outcome of the review.

— For example, the Guidelines-don’t really take into account that current senior
Minsters are regionally.based, such as the Deputy Premier being based in Monto,
and restrict travel on the aircraft to and from these regional areas. The Guidelines
could therefore be amended to provide greater flexibility in this regard. Details of
costs for thiese optians are at Attachment E.

— Should you-approve the Guidelines being amended as an interim measure, DPC
will provide youwith draft amendments for consideration when providing you with
theAfurther brief on the terms of reference for the review.

o CONSULTATION

- Financial Services, DPC.

Comments {Premier or DG)

Jon Grayson
Director-General

Action Officer: Tim Herbert Approvals by Director /ED / DDG
Area: State Affairs documented in nofes in TRIM
Telephone: 32243654
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Queensland Government Air Wlng
Aprll 2012

-S8COPE OF SERVICES

o The Government Air Wing (GAW) provides important rapid response
(2 hours notice for domestic, 3 hours for international) /aviation
support for: '
~ Donate Life Queensland — Organ Retrieval flights, with or without
- Medical Teams, Australia wide and from New Zealand: These

flights can occur at short notice (2 hours) and(narmaily occur
during the late night/early maorning hours. These flights take
priority over all other flights.
- - Emergency Management Queensiand -\as a resuit of natural
 disasters, such as floods or for search and'rescue. Both GAW
aircraft were very busy during Dec/10/Jan 11.and Jan 12 flood and
cyclone events.
- Queensland Government support =fof evénts such as the mine
- disaster in Greymouth, NZ, by transport of Mine Rescue
personnel and equipment from Brisbane direct to the disaster site .
- Queensland Police — as back up.for ded:cated Pohce aircraft.
- Ministerial Transport.

- Vice Regal Transport.

e GAW operate two Fixed Wing gircraft, a Hawker 850 XP (Jet) and a
King Air 350 (Turbo Prop). The Jet has the capability to fransport up
to 8 passengers direct to-any suitable sealed runway aerodrome in
Queensiand within_3.5 hours flight time. The King Air has the
capability to operau to suitable sealed and unsealed runway
aerodromes, carrying Up to 8 passengers. Technical details for each
aircraft are attached.

+ The/ GAW operate from a facility at Brisbane Airport, shared with the
Queensland Police Air Wing. This facility provides secure, private
facilities fer departure and arrival of GAW aircraft and mcludes a
departure lounge area seating 10 — 15 personnel.

o GAW have a full time staff of eight, comprlsmg
- Chief Pilot/Director (SESZ)

s
o
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- Senior Administration Officer (AO4)
- Maintenance Supervisor (SO}
- Pilots - 5 (SO) '

o Authority for aircraft tasking and operation is contained in the
document “Guidelines for the use of Government Aircraft for Official
Transport”. Approval for Ministerial and Vice-Regal use/of the aircraft
is vested in the Premier and delegates, who are curréitly thie Chiefs
of Staff. The Chief Pilot GAW has authority to despatch aircraft for -

“short notice Organ Retrieval, Search and Rescug and Counier
Disaster Flights, and for GAW Training flights. -

e For the financial year end June 2011, 634.7hours were flown in the

two fixed wing aircraft used by GAW.,

o The 2011-2102 operating Budget for GAW is $4,699,642. As GAW
operations are demand driven, budgét variations can bé expected.

Additional Background

s All scheduled maintenance for the Hawker Jat and’King Air was comp!eted with minimal
disruption to programmed tasking ofthe aircraft:’Both aircraft are in excellent condition.

o The Hawker Jet was unavailable'for usé/for anumber of periods in 2010-11 due to
unforeseen maintenance issues: In-ll cases, rectification costs in parts and labour were
covered under the emstmg service aﬂreaments including Major Periodic Inspections for
both engines completed in‘Jan 12,

« The warranty periods for'tioth aircraft bave expired and maintenance agreements have
been finalised for the aircraft-toenable budgeting for maintenance costs and to ensure
the resale value is optimised:
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Flying hours for Government Air Wing for aircraft use from 1 July 2010 — 30 June
2011 - by activity,

Hawker King Air
_ - | JetSGY | sG6Q

Activity Hours Hours Total % of Total
Counter Disaster j 12.3 30.2 42.5 6.5%
Governor 11149 30.2 45.1 7.0%
Reconstruction o
Authority 11.4 3.6 15.0 3.6%
Maintenance 0.8 1.2 2.0 0.3%
Ministerial 235.2 139.5 374.7 59.0%
Organ ' )
Transplant: | 66.7 12.8 79.5 12.5% -

(’ QOther 21.3 2.3 23.6 3.6%

: Police . 29.6 12.6 42.2 68.5% |

Search and ‘
rescue 0.0 0.0 0.0 10,0%
Training 8.7 1.4 10.1 1,6%
Total. 4009 2338 6347 | 100%
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Hawker 850XP — VH-SCY

Cabin Configuration:

o 8 seafs total 5 individual fully reclining seats, 3 place side/ facing bench seat, separate
internal toilet compartment.

a Air Conditioned, pressurised.

e Internal Baggage arcas, accommodates normal bagdage for up to 8 passengers.

e (alley area with oven, microwave, hotwater ot iea/coffee making, ice box for cold

drinks.

o (Cabin displays for in-flight map and’ DVD player.

Technical Specifications:

. Cruise Speed:

e & ¢ & @

Crew:

Range Full Fuel, 8 Pay! 2000DM/3700KM
Cruise Altitude:

38000 39000 Fv/11127 — 11887M
450Knots/830KM Hr

Minimum Runway Required:{500 metres, sealed runway

2 Pilots
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King Air 350 ~ VH-SGQ

Cabin Configuration;

" e 8 seats total 8 individual reclining seats, sepatatt/interal toilet compaltment
e Air Conditioned, pressurised,
o [nternal Baggage areas, accommodates nonnai baggage for up to 8 passeﬁ gers.
External baggage lockers —unpressurised.
e Limited galley area with hot water for teafcoffég making, ice box for cold drinks.
o Cabin display for in-flight infermation.

Technical Specifications:

o Range Full Fuel, 8 Pax; F50NM/1390KM

o Cruise Altitude: 24000 - 35000 Ft/7315 — 10670M

e Cruise Speed: 280Knots/519KKM Hr

e Minimum Runway Required:J200 metres, gravel/dirt with limitations.
o Crew: 2 Pilots
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" Indicative Trip Times, includes taxi times:

From Brishane | Distance | HawkerlJet | King Air -~ | Remarks
To KM time Time '
{H:MM) {H:MM)
Auckiand 2293 3:00 N/A
Adelaide 1619 2:45 4:10
Canberra 955 2:00 2:50
Melbourne 1428 2:30 3:30 N
(Essendon) : .
Perth 3606 5:30 8:40 Refuel required for King Alr, may be
required for Jet ]
Sydney _ 752 | 145 2:25
Aurukun 1956 -1 3:15 4:55
Birdsville 1376 2:25 3:40
Cairns 1389 2:40 3:50 N
Charleville 687 . 1:30 2:05 |
Doomadgee | 1800 3:00 430~/ | Nanightarrivals -
Gladstone 433 110|430
Horn Isiand 2182 335 5:25
(Thursday '
Island) "L
Lockhart River 1915 3:00 4:50
Moranbah 780, -~ |1:35 2:00
Rockhampton | hi7 1:15 1:40
Townsville 1111 - 2:05 3:00
Warwick 142 N/A 0:50
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From: Sharon Bailey <Sharon, Bailey@premiers.qld.gov.au>
Sent; Wednesday, 25 July 2012 9:59 AM

To: Jon Grayson

Ce: Ben Myers. :

Subject: GAW Guidelines proposed amendments

Attachments: Amended GUIDELINES FOR THE USE OF GOVERNMENT AIRCRAFT FOR OFFICIAL
: TRANSPORT V1_minor changes.docx; Amended GUIDELINES FOR THE USE OF
GOVERNMENT AIRCRAFT FCR OFFICIAL TRANSPORT V2_22.05.12.docx

Categories: EA to print or EA printed

Please find attached proposed amendments to the Government Air wing Guideliies

V1 contains the minimalist changes and V2 are the more detailed contextual chanasgs
Versions with the tracked changes are also available.

Regards

Sharon

This email is intended only for the addressee. Its use is limited to that intended by
the author at the time and it is not ‘
to be distributed without the avtheor's jconsent.

Unless otherwise stated, the State f Quégnsland accepts no liability for the contents

of this email except where
subsequently confirmed in writing. The opinidns expressed in this email are those of

the author and do not necessaridy
represent the views of the Statée of) Queensland. This email is confidential and may be

subject to a claim of legal privileége-

If you have received this email in _exror, please notify the author and delete this
message immediately.

1
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Department of the Premier and Cabinet Page 1

GUIDELINES FOR THE USE OF GOVERNMENT AIRCRAFT
FOR OFFICIAL TRANSPORT

TABLE OF CONTENTS

FOREWORD
1.0 POLICY

Official Travel

Staff, Public Servant and Media

Guests of the Governor or Minister

Annual Report

Consumption and Carriage of Alcoholic Beverages on Government Air Wing

Aircraft

P Yy
O W =

2.0 PURPOSE
3.0 APPLICATION OF THE GUIDELINES
4.0 ADMINISTRATION OF THE GUIDELINES
5.0 INTRODUCTION
5.1 Background
5.2 Allccation of Aircraft
5.3 Constraints
5.3.1  Alternative Modes of/Travel
5.3.2 Servicing Electorate Needs
5.3.3 One-Way Travel and Emipty Sectofs
5.3.4 Piiot Duty Hours
6.0 REQUESTS FOR THE USE OF AIRCRAFTFOR OFFICIAL TRAVEL

6.1 Booking Enquiries

6.2 Application Form

6.3 Approval forAircraft Use

6.4 The need to-provide updated details to the Air Wing
6.5 Luggage

6.6 Provision/of Catering

6.7 Cancéiled Bookings

6.8 Alrgrew Accommodation

7.0 SECURITY-ACCESS TG AIRPORT

7.1 Government Air Wing - Brisbane Airport

ATTACHMENT\ HEAD OFFICE AND GOVERNMENT AIR WING LOCATIONS
ATTACHMENT 2 AIRCRAFT TYPES AND CAPABILITIES

ATTACHMENT 3 APPLICATION FOR USE OF AIRCRAFT (form)

Guidelines for the Use of Government Afreraft for Official Transport May 201 2¢eh20H
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Department of the Premier and Cabinet Page 2

FOREWOQORD

These Guidelines for the Use of Government Aircraft for Official Transport
incorporate the processes to he followed when requesting official travel for
the Governor, Ministers_and ; the Head of the Queensiand Reconstruction
Authority andthe-Cemmissionerfor the Queensland FloedsCommission—af
Inquiry-on fixed-wing aircraft operated by the Government Air Wing.

The Guidelines are administered on hehalf of the Premier by the Government
Air Wing, State Affairs, Governance Division, Department of the Premier and
Cabhinet. The Government Air Wing provides fixed-wing servicegs to meet
emergency and other specified aviation needs of the commuriity and the
Government, including official travel for the Governor and Ministers.” The
Head of the Queensland Reconstruction Authority may access fixed-wing
services from the Government Air Wing for the duration of-his_appointinent.
Fhe—Commissienerfarthe Queansland Floeds-Cormmissign ot loguisy-may
aceessfixed-wing-servicasfrom-the GovarnmentAl-Wingforthe/ duration-of

The aircraft are not a substitute for normal commefcial travél and ghouid only
be used when aiternative means are not avaitable Oy are/inadequate to
service official requirements.

An overriding principle for the allocation 4f aircraft is that first priority will
always he given to emergency tasks. Al other requests for use are
processed in the order in which they ar€ received;.and Approved official travel
tasks may be cancelled at short notice if an gmiergensy arises.

The use of Gevernment aircraft for official pMrposes requires my prior
approval on all occasions.

ARNMABLIGKH MB
Premier of Queensland

Guidelines for the Use of Government Aireraft for Official Transport May 201 2veh 2011
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Department of the Premier and Cabinet Page 3
10 POLICY

1.1 Official Travel

1.1.1 Government fixed-wing aircraft are available, subject to certain

1.2

1.2.1

1.2.2

1.2.3

1.3

1.31

1.4

1.4.1

‘Ministor

Guests of the Governor or Minister

conditions, for use by the Governor, Ministers_and; the Head of thg
Queensiand Reconstruction Authority snrd—the Cemmissienerforthe
Queenstand—Floeds--Commissien—eftnquiny—in carrying out official
duties and fulfilling official responsibilities in relation to the functions
and activittes of the Office of Governor, a Minister's Portolio,
Government;_or the Queensland Reconstruction Authority/er- e
Queensland-Floods-Cemmissien-of-Inguiry.

Staff, Public Sérvants and the Media

Governor’s staff, Ministerial staff, Public Servants and\members-ofthe
Media are not permitted to travel on the aircraft unless ac¢ompanying
the Governor or Minister.

However, in circumstances where it is considered cost effective and
expeditious for the Governor or Minister to leave’ar boafd a flight at a
place other than Brisbane, staff, public servants. or/thie media may
travel unaccompanied for a portion of the journey subject to approval
of the Premier_or the Premier's deledaies. In thesécircumstances the
most senior staff member on board'is to assume responsibility from the
Minister or Governar,

The Head of the Queensland-Reconstruction Authority may travel on
the alrcraft unaccompanied by the-Governor or a Minister.

42t4—The Commissioner-fortheQueensland-Fleoods Commission—af- -~ ‘{Formatted: Indent: Left: 1,27 cm,T
Ingquiry-may-ravel-onthéairsiafcenaccompanied by-the-Covernorora No bullets or numbering

First line: 0 cm, Tab stops: Not at

<~~~ - Formatted: Indent: Lefi: 1.27 cm,
1,25 cm

Subject to the approval.ofthe Premier, the Governor, Minister or; Head
of the Queensiand Reconstruction Authority or the Gommissiener for
the-QuednslandFlaods Comniissien—sidrguins-may be accompanied
by those non-Government persons whose attendance they believe on
reasphaiie grounds will assist in the performance of the task for which
the/use of an aircraft is being requested.

Annual'Report
A full and comprehensive statement on the activities of the

Government Air Wing shall be included in each Annual Report of the
Department of the Premier and Cabinet.
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1.5

1.5.1

Consumption and Carriage of Alcoholic Beverages on
Government Air Wing Aircraft

The carriage and responsibleer consumption of alcoholic beverages

on Government Air Wing Aircraft is mel permitted, subject to the
condiiions in paragraphs 1.5.2 and 1.5.3 below.

+— /=] Formatted: Indent: Left: 1.27 cm,
No piifiets or numbering

The Government Air_Wing _provides a_limited_supply of alconsl/for

Ahobiny  Carriage _and_consumption of alcohol in certain  aboriginal

2.0

2.1

3.0

3.1

4.0

4.1

5.0

5.1

5.1.1

service during flights.  Alcoholic _beverages should be consumed
responsibly, having regard lo air and workplace health _and safety
reguirements and s _only to be permiited with the specific Approval-of
the Premier, Governor or Minister travelling on the individualflight.

</~ =~ Formatted: List Faragraph, Left, No
bullets or numbering

communities is subject to restriction. Prior to depasiure-for, or arrival
at, _any Aboriginal _community, all alcohol is to be\ rémoved—from
Government Air Wing aircraft,

PURPOSE

The Guidelines for the Use of Government Aiccraft/for Olficial Transport
set out the procedures to be followed when requesting official travel for
the Governor, Ministers__and; the Head offhe Queensiand
Reconsiruction Authority ard-the Commissignerforthe Queensland
Floods-Coemmission-of-Inquiry—on fixed-wing aiferaft operated by the
Government Air Wing.

APPLICATION OF THE GUIDELINES

- The Guidelines apply fo—the Goverpor, Ministers,'Head of the

Queensland Reconsfruction) | Authority, Ceommissioner—fer—the
Queensland-Hoods Cofamisgian-afaguintand their respective staff,

ADMINISTRATION OF THE GUIDELINES

The Guidelines “are~administered on behalf of the Premier by the
Government Air Wing, State Affairs, Governance Division, Department
of the Premier.and Cabinet.

INTRODUCTION

Background

The. Governmeni Air Wing provides fixed-wing services to meet
emergency. and other specified aviation needs of the community and
the Goverhiment. These services include Organ Transplant Retrievals,
Search and Rescue (SAR), Counter Disaster Operations {(CDQO) and
Official Transport. The Air Wing comprises the following two fixed-
wing aircraft, both located at the Brisbane airport -
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Hawker 850XP Jet
Beech King Air 350

5.1.2 The Guidelines include the following attachments -

Attachment 1 - Head Office and Government Air Wing Locations
Attachment 2 - Aircraft types and capabilities
Attachment 3 - Application for Use of Aircraft

5.2 Allocation of Aircraft

5.2.1 An overriding principle for the allocation of aircraft is that first-priority
will always be given to emergency tasks. All other requests for use/wiil
normally be processed in the order in which they afe received. An
approved request may be cancelled at short nofice i ‘an emergency
task eventuates (eg. the Hawker 850XP Jet is used/for organ
transplant retrieval tasks and, as such, these short-noticeflights will
take precedence over all other arrangementsy and aircraft \may be re-
allocated by the Chief Pilot where no (hange of paSsenger or
destination is required.

5.2.2 If conflicting aircraft requirements occur, for example, between
Ministers, minisierial staff are to negotiate priorifies and advise the
Administration  Officer, Government ~Air. Wirg, State Affairs
(Governance), Department of the/Premier and Cabinet, accordingly.

5.2.3 In the case of urgent maintefarice problems such as.failure on start
up, aircraft may be re-altocated by the Chief Pilot where no change of
passenger or destination is required.

5.3 Constraints
5.3.1 Alternative Modes of Travel

Alternative modes-of-fravel, including commercial airlines, are to he
utilised wheietver possible. Government aircraft are not to be a
substitute for ether meang of travel and should only be used when
alternative/means are not available or are inadequate o service official
requirements. :

Dug to the substantial time constraints placed on the Premier, Depuiy
Plefier and-—Treasurer,—use of commercial airlines will rarely be
practical /and need not be considered as a prerequisite to booking
government.aircraft for the Premier, Depuiy Premier and Treasurer.

5.3.2 Servicing Electorate Needs
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The use of Government aircraft for travel to, from and within a
Minister's electorate is only permitted if such travel is related to the
discharge of a Minister's official portfolio responsibilities (see para.
1.1) and not to service electorate needs.

5.3.3 One-Way Travel and Empty Sectors

It is uneconomical for aircraft to operate a sector without passenders
or on the basis on a one-way flight (ie. travel to or from Brisbang
empty). Approval will not be granted for flights of this nature; unless
exceptional circumstances exist. Occasional -empty sectors may be
. required for operational purposes, i.e. refuelling or sedurity of the

| aircraft.

5.3.4 Pilot Duty Hours

Civil Aviation legislation provides guidance on the duty‘apd/flight time

a pilot may undertake. Air Wing pilot duty houys are normaly limited to

10 hours duty in any one day. On rare occasjons, tiie Chief Pilot may

authorise an extension of duty hours if it is’considefed that safety will
| not be compromised. (See also para. 6.87.2)

6.0 REQUESTS FOR THE USE OF AIRCRAFT FOR QOFFICIAL TRAVEL
6.1 Boocking Enquiries

6.1.1 The Administration Officer{ Govérmment /Air Wing, State Affairs,
Department of the Premier and-Cabinet/ is the officer responsible for
aircraft bookings. Bookirigs-for the aircraft are to be made through that
officer as early as possibie (Telephone? 3898 9500). Aircraft may have
been bocoked previcUsly or/ke-unavailable for a range of reasons
including scheduted maintehance.

6.2 Application Form

6.2.1 Following verbal advicefrom the Administration Officer that an aircraft
is available on the designated date and time, a formal written request
must be /made~immediately to that Officer. Requests are to be
submitted on the-Application for Use of Aircraft, all sections of which
must”_be™completed, including "not applicable” notations where
appropriate. The form is to be faxed to the Administration Officer at
least five (5) calendar days prior to the day of the proposed flight. The
faxniwvnber is 3898 9507.

6.2.2 The Appiication must be accompanied by a copy of the Governor’s,
Minister’s_or;—the Head of the Queensland Reconstruction Authority’s
er—-Gommissionerfor-the Queensland Floods-Commission-of-nguirys
full itinerary for the engagement for which the use of an aircraft is
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being sought. Requests must be signed by the Minister or a Senior
Policy Adviser.

6.2.3 All persons, including members of the media, who are travelling in
government aircraft must be clearly identified on the Application fof
official reporting purposes.

6.2.4 For non-Government passengers, an explanation must be provided on
the Application as to the reasons for those passengers being, included
on the flight.

6.2.5 On receipt, the Administration Officer, will submit the Applicatiorto the
Office of the Premier for consideration.

6.3 Approval for Aircraft Use

6.3.1 The Premier, or the Premiers’ Delegates, are regponsible forapproving
the use of Government aircraft operated by the’ Air Wing. ‘Flights will
not proceed untii approval is granted. Fath reglest will only be
approved if the Premier considers that the cireumstance warrants the
use of Government aircraft. ‘

6.3.2 The Chief Pilot is authorised to appreve-short notiGe flights in support
of the organ retrieval program conducted-by the Dgpartment of Health,
Queenslanders Donate, short notice_Search and/Rescue and Counter
Disaster flights, Queensiand Régonstruction Authority flights, and pilot
training and checking flights conducted for Alr'Wing pilots.

6.3.3 The Office of the Promier ‘will “infofm the Official Secretary,
Government House;; the Office_of the requesting Minister_or the
Reconsiruction Authorityy-the/Grmenstand-Reconstuction-Authorib-or
the-QueenslandFoeds Cotnrission—of-lnguiny, that approval has or
has not been granted. If approved, the Office of the Premier will also
provide a copy/of _the approved Application to the Administration
Officer, Government Air Wing,

6.3.4 Following fiight-approval, ail arrangements in regard to flight planning,
itineraries,/catering, etc., are to be made direct with the Administration
Officer, Government. Ajr Wing (Telephone 389 82500).

6.3.5 If a/flight ifinerary is changed subsequent to approval by the Premier it
istnecessary for-& further Application setting out the revised itinerary to
be submitted for the Premier's consideration (see also paragraph
6.4.32).

6.3.6 All passengers are expected to arrive at the Air Wing at least 15
minutes prior to the approved departure time. Changes to the road
system at and near Brisbane can fead to extensive traffic delays.
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6.4 The need to provide updated details to the Air Wing

6.4.1 For flight planning purposes, the pilot-in-command needs to be fully
informed of the desired deparfure and arrival times for all flights. The
pilot's planning can then compensate for predicted winds, adverge
weather, probable Air Traffic Control delays, etc. which could affect
times by as much as 20 per cent. [n some circumstances, an gatlier
departure time may be appropriate especially where an arrival time_is
critical (eq. to ensure the Governor's or Minister's arrival time/at an
official function).

6.4.2 Unusual flight profiles, such as a fly-over of government facilities, must
be cleared in advance by the Chief Pilot. Airspace and operatictial
constraints can affect such requests.

6.4.3 It is essential for the Office of Governor, Minister's Office’td submit to
the Air Wing an up-fo-date copy of the jtinerary, \names of all
passengers and desired/essential timings for'all flights onthe morning
of the working day preceding the actual flight. ThesSe details must be
faxed to Air Wing on fax 3898 9507.

6.4.4 An up-to-date copy of the itinerary, names of ail/passengers and’
desired/essential timings for all flighis_undertaken. on behalf of the
Queensiand Reconstruction Authority~and thg Queensland—Flosds
Commissien—efdnguiry—should be' faxed to-the/Air Wing on fax 3898
9507 as soon as practicable.

6.5 Luggage

6.5.1 Any arrangements iequired/ for luggage and cargo are the
responsibility of the{mest serur-ministerial staff member travelling.
Both Air Wing aircrafi~have limited baggage storage facilities and
carriage of unusual or bulky.items may. be restricted where the
maximum numkbier.of passengers are to be carried.

6.5.2 Many itemg suitable for-carriage by ground transport are not suitable
for carriage by air, including many items that are considered goods
dangeraus foralr carriage (Dangerous Goods). Civil Aviation
legislation restricts.the carriage of such items and Air Wing pilots must
refuse-te carry certain such Dangerous Goods. Prior contact with the
Al J)Wing/is_required if doubt exists as to the suitability of items for
carriage by air. :

6.6 Provision of Catering
6.6.1 Tea, Coifee, water, soft drinks and light snacks are carried on Air Wing

aircraft at all times. Limited catering can be provided where flights of
more that one hours duration cccur over the normal meal hours of:
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a. Breakfast 06:00 - 07:30
b. Lunch 12:00 — 13:00
c. Dinner 17:30 — 19:00

6.6.2 Catering facilities are very limited at many aerodromes visited by Aif
Wing aircraft. Limited snacks and sandwiches will be provided wheré
possible, within the limitation of the safe storage and handling ‘of
foodstuffs,

] 6.6.3 Requests for special catering should be made at the time of bdokingto
establish the viability of such requests., Due to the limitations of safe
food storage in Air Wing aircraft, not all special requests may-be able
to be met, ’ ,

- ‘[Formatted: List Paragraph, Laft, No‘]
6.6.4 Limited service of aicoholic beverages is also available\in agcordanice bullets or numbering

with the policy referred to under paragraph 1.5.
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6.7 Cancelled Bookings

6.7.1 The Air Wing is to be advised as soon as possible if/a/flight is to be
cancelled. If a bocking is cancelled it is necessary tovecommence the
process and regain the approval of.the Premier prior to arranging
another flight. '

6.8 Afrcrew Accommodation

6.8.1 Accommodation for pilots -is_to~bhe-aranged by the Government
House/Minister's Office_ory Queenstand/Reconstruction Authority--er
Queensland Hoods—Gebimission-af Inquiny-concerned.  Single room
accommodation is required, Crewingis 2 pilots per aircraft,

] 6.8Z.20n those occasions when pitofs are required to be on duty for more
than 10 hours ©n.any cne day they may require, and should be
provided with if requested, day use of accommodation.

7.0 SECURITY ACCESS TO AIRPORT
7.1 Govgrriment Air Wing - Brishane Airport

7.1.1 Ail accesg 10 the Government Air Wing is through security gates
conirolied by the Air Wing.

7.1.2 Once a clearance has been given by the Air Wing, all personnel must
proceed directly to, and remain within the Government Air Wing
building. Depending on security circumstances, vehicle assess to the
Air Wing may not be permitted. In such circumstances, the adjacent
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enclosed car park may be utilised.-Underno-circumstancearevehicles
permitted-on-thetarmae. Vehicle access to the tarmac is limited and
subject to_security restrictions. Vehicle access to the tarmac must be
pre arranged through the Air Wing, ‘

7.1.3 Access to the hangar and tarmac is restricted to those holding
appropriate Air Side |dentification Cards (ASIC). Persons not holdirg
an ASIC requiring access to the hangar or tarmac must be escortéd by
Alr Wing personnel holding an ASIC, .
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ATTACHMENT 1
HEAD OFFICE AND GOVERNWMEMT AIR WING LOCATIONS

GOVERNMENT AIR WING

Location Government Air Wing
' Qantas Maintenance Area Hangar A
Pandanus Avenue
Eagle Farm Q 4007
(On the side opposite to the Domestic

Terminal)
Postal Address PO Box 1018, Eagle Farm, (& 4009
Telephone Administration Officer
389 89500
Facsimile 389 89507
HEAD OFFICE
L.ocation Office/ of the/Executivé Director, State
Affairg
Governange Division
Bepartmentafthe Premier and Cabinet
Executive Building
100/George/Street
BRISBANE Q 4001
Postal Address PO Box 15185,
CITY EAST Q4002
Guidelines for the Use of Government Aireraft for Official Transport May 201 2reh-204
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ATTACHMENT 2

AIRCRAFT TYPES AND CAPABILITIES

AIRCRAFT ASSETS Fixed Wing Fixed Wing
AIRCRAFT TYPE Hawker 850XP Jet Beech King Air 350
BASED AT Brisbane - Government | Brishane - Governfrent

Air Wing Air Wing
POWERED BY 2 Jet Engines 2 Turbo-prop Epgines__ |
NUMBER OF 8 8 — 9. Howevet, the
PASSENGERS . number may hetimited

to 8 if luggage is
required-fo be carried:

NOMINAL RANGE* 2500NM 1600NM
4600KM 3000KM

FLIGHT TIMES A00NM/HR ZTONMIHR

{APPROX) ‘ 740KM/HR VSOOKM/HR

AIRCRAFT CREWING | 2 Pilots 12 Pilots

AIRCRAFT CALL VH-SGY VH-5GQ

SIGNS

AIRCRAFT PHONE 0428 783 351 0426783 352

NUMBERS .

* Range is dependent on task natdre and number of passengers.
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ATTACHMENT 3
Department of the Premier and Cabinet
Application for Use of Aircraft

Details of Applicant: Queensland
Officeholder: Government

Contact; Tel: A
Position: Fax: 7]

Purpose of
Tripis:

Justification | Altemative use of travel has baen investigated but fs unsuitable bécause = NO.
: COMMERCIAL FLIGHTS AVAILABLE TO MEET TIMES REQUIRED:

Reason for Application:

Proposed Flight Departure Details: Proposed Flight Arrivai Detaiis:

Date Time Location Date Time Location

L
|
i

Date Time Details._

Critical Deadlines:
List of Passengers:

Title / Initials / Surname Position / Organisatioyi Travelling beiween Logations No.
Explanatory Note: 1. N,
2' —_—
Authorisation: '
Officer: N Signature: Date:
Position: N

Certification | | certify that this Application is for
' Official Travel and-no-suitable
alternative mode of travelis available.

Itinerary: A copy ofthe-Govemor'siMinister's
ftinerary attached: Yes  No (Circle as
appropriate)

Approvali_

Alrcraft allocated: | Use of aircraft
[approved:
Hawker Jet / King Air Yes No Premier
Guidelines for the Use of Government Aireralt for OfIicial Transpert May 2012:eh20H
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GUIDELINES FOR THE USE OF GOVERNMENT AIRCRAFT
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FOREWORD

The Gavernment Air Wing provides fixed wing air_services to assist in
meelfing the demanding travel commitmentis of the Premier, the Governor and
Ministers. _The Air Wing will_alsa,_ when. available, contribute to_meeting the
emergency and other specified aviation needs of the community.

These Guidelines for the Use of Government Aircraft for Official Trapsfort
incorporate the management processes fo be followed when requesting
official travel on fixed wing_aircraft operated by the Government Air_ Wingt
Travel may be approved for Ministers, -fer-the Governor—inistess/and, ~the
Head of the Queensland Reconstruction Authority, -andthe-Commissionoriop
the Queensland. Fleads - Commission-af-lnquiry-on-fixed-wing-aircraftopérated
by—t—h&GevemmeHt—-A—ir--Wing-;

FHreGuidehnesarcadministered-on-behalf of the Premiar by the Govatipnent
AR Wing,-Stale-Affairs Gevernanse Didsien;-BDepadment o the 2femier-and
Cabinel—TheGovernment-A\Wingprovidesfixedidng-services-to-meet
emergenecy—and-other-specified—avigtion—needs—af the-eommunity-and—the
Gevernment—including official travel far-the—Gevefrer-and-Mitisters-—The
Head—ef the Queensland Resonstructon-Acthariby gy acdesSs dixed wing

sarvices from-the Gevernment Air Wing for-the-duration-of pis-appeiniment
The-GCemmissionerfor-the-Queensland-Floods Commission-ef Inguiry-may

ascessfixed-wingservecesfrom-the Goverament-Air Wing for the-durationof
her-appointment:

The aircraft are-net-a-substitute fer normal commereta-travel-and-should only
be used when alternative means ofdravel/are nof/available or are inadequate
to service official requirements. /

An everriding-prinsipleferthelallacation. of “aireraft-ls—thatfirst-priority -wil
always- be given- {e -emergeney—taske——All- ather  requests—for-use—are
processedin-the order inwhichthey are received and-approved-official-travel
tasks-may-he-canesled atshorlnolicedf an-emergency atises:

The use of Government-aircraft for official purposes requires my prior
approval on all oceasions.

Campbel/bewmah
ARINA-BLAGH MR
Premier of Queensland

+- -~ { Formatted: Indent: Lef: 125cm |
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1.0 POLICY
141  Official Travel

1.1.1 Government fixed-wing aircraft are available_for use hy the Premier;-,
the _Governor,  Ministers and the Head of the Queensland
Reconstruction Authority subject-to-certaincondions—foruse by thé
Gevernor—Ministers,—theHead of the Quesnsland {Reconstruttion
Avtharty—and —the—Coemmissicner {for—the Queenstand Flocds
Commission-etinguir-in carrying out official duties and fulfilling efficial
responsibilities in relation to the functions and activities of these
orfices. Use of the aircraft is subject fo the provisions ‘of thése
Guidelines. Officeof Govarnor—a-dinisters Rortfolio Governmeht—the

Queensland—Fesenstrustion—~Authority—or —the QueenslandFlgads

1.2  Staff, Public Servants and the Media

| 1.2.1 Gevermers—staf;_Governor's staff -~ Ministerial staff, /Public)Servants
and members of the Media are not permittad-to travel o the aircraft
unless accompanying the Governor or Minister:.

1.2.2 However, in circumstances where it is considered cost effective and

| expeditious for the—Goverreror the Governor orvinister to leave or

board a flight at a place other thatn/Brisbane, staff, public servants or

the media may fravel unaccomipanied for a_portion of the journey

| subject to approval of the Premiigr or the Premier's delegates. In these

circumstances the most senior.staff/member on board js to assume

| responsibility for adherence-to these Guidelines from the Minister or
Governor.

1.2.3 The Head of the Quéensland/Reconstruction Authority may travel on
the aircraft unaccompanied by the Governor or a Minister.

1.2.4The CommissioherJor the Queensland Fleods Gommission-oftnguiry— - ~{ Formatted: No bullets or numbering |
raay-ravel-en-the-aisskaft-unaccompanicd by the Governorora Minister:
P { Farmatted: Indent: Left; 0 cm, First }
1.3 42— Guests of the Govérnor or Minister o \linet Ocm, Tab siops: Not at 1.25 cm
SR Vi RS PTE e - Formatted: Cutline numbered +
rlinistor v | Levek: 2 + Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, ..
. kY + Start at: 2 + Alignment: Left +
f p . ] % 7 . .
1.3.1 Subjéctto the approval of the Premier, the Governor, Minister or; Head . |Afgned at: 0cm + Tab after: 1.24
) . o | €m + Indent at: 1.24 cm
of thie Queensland Reconsfruction Authority erthe Commissionerfor Y
va oA ERE—E] f et ‘i . Formatted: Indent: Left: 1.24 cm,
e Quegrsiand Hoods Commission-of 1 Ageiry-may be accompanled Tab stops: Not at .25 cm

by these‘non-Government persons whose attendance they believe on
reasonable grounds will assist in the performance of the task for which
the use of an aircraft is being requested.

1.4  Annual Report
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141 A full and comprehensive statement on the activities of the
Government Air Wing shall be included in each Annual Report of the
Department of the Premier and Cabinet.

1.5 Consumption and Carriage of Alcoholic Beverages on
Government Air Wing Aircraft

1.5.1__The carriage and_tesponsibleer consumption of alcoholic bevefages
on Government Air Wing Aircraft is net permitted, subject tohé
conditions in paragraphs 1.5.2 and 1.5.3 below.

S G TFormatted: Indent: Left: 1.27 cm, j

1.5.2 The Government Air Wing provides a limited supply ofl alcokiol for No bullets or numbering

service during flights.  Alcoholic beverages should be Sgcomsumed
respansibly, having regard to air_and workplace health and safeiy
requiremanis and is only to be permitted with the specific.approval of
the Premier, Governor or Minister travelling on the individuat fiight7

@ *t:ormatted: List Paragraph, Left, No ‘]
54153  Carriage and consumption of alcohef /in certaifi aboriginal bullets or numbering
communilies is subject to restriclion. Prior j0/depatiure Tor, or arrival
at, _any _Aboriginal _community, all _algohoi{is 16/be rémoved from

Government Air Wing aircraft.

2.0 PURPOSE

21  The Guidelines for the Use of Government-Aircrafl for Official Transport
set out the procedures to be folloyed whenrequesting official travel for
the-GovernerMinisters,the Hdad-etthe Queensland-Reconstruction
Authority —and —the Comnlissione’ for/ the Queensland—Floeds
GCemmission-—ef-laguisy——on fixed-wirg aircraft operated by the
Government Air Wing.

3.0 APPLICATION OF THE GUIDELINES

3.1 The Guidelines apply to the—Gevernor—-the Governor, Ministers, the
Head of the QUeensland Reconstruction Authority, Gempmissioner for
the—CQueenslapd—FEeeds—Commission—of Inguiry—and thefr respective
staff,

4.0 ADMINISTRATION OF THE GUIDELINES

4.1 The/Guidelines are administered on behalf of the Premier by the
Geyvernment Air Wing,- State Affairs; Gevernanee-Division; Department
of the Premierand Cabinet.

50 INTRODUCTION

5.1 Background
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5.1.1 The Government Air Wing provides fixed-wing services to assist in
meeting the demanding travel commitments of the Premier, the
Governor_and Ministers.meet-emergency-and-otherspeacified-aviaticn
needs-of-the-eemmunity-and-the-Goverpment_The Air Wing wiil also,
when available, confribute fo meeting the emergency and other
specified_aviation_needs of the community These services include
Organ Transplant Retrievals, Search and Rescue (SAR), Countef
Disaster Operations (CDO) and Official Transport. The Air Wihg
comprises the following two fixed-wing aircraft, both located at the
Brisbane ajrport -

Hawker 850XP Jet
Beech King Air 350

5.1.2 The Guidelines include the following attachments -

" Attachment 1 - Head Office and Government Air Wing Locatighs
Attachment 2 - Aircraft types and capabilities
Attachment 3 - Application for Use of Aircraft

5.2 Allocation of Aircraft

l 5.2.1 An-overriding prineiplefor-the-allecation-of airerafiis-4hat first prierity
will-always-be-givernto-omergoney-tatkss<All stherfequests for use will
normally be processed in the ordér in which they are received. An
approved request may be cancelled at short notice if an emergency
task eventuates (eg. the Hawker B50XP,.Jet is used for organ
transplant refrieval tasks-andsas<gplsh~bhégeshort-notce fights-will
takoprocedence-overall-otheratrangerseris) and aircraft may be re-
allocated by the Chief Pilet-in \consultation with_the Premier’s office
where no change of pagsenger/ or destination is required.

5.2.2 If conflicting aircraft requifements occur, for example, between
Ministers, ministerial staff are to negotiate priorities and advise the
Administration /Qfficer, Govefnment Air ~Wing, Slate Affairs
(Governance),Department of the Premier and Cabinet, accordingly.

5.2.3 In the casé.ofurgent maiitenance problems such as faifure on start
up, aircraft may-be.re-allocated by the Chief Pilot where no change of
passenger or desiination is required.

5.3 Consgtraints

5.3.1 Alternative Modes of Travel
Alternative modes of travel, including commercial airlines, are to be

utilised wherever possible. Government aircraft are- not to -be a
substitte—for-other—means-of-travel-aad -should only be used when
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alternative means of travel are not available or are inadequate to
service official requirements.

Due to the substantial time constraints placed on the Premier, Deputy
Premier and Treasurer, -—use of commercial airlines will rarely be
practical and need not be considered as a prerequisite to booking
Ggovernment aircraft for the Premier,_Deputy Premier and Treasurel

5.3.2 Servicing Electorate Needs

The use of Government aircraft for travel to, from and/ within—=a
Minister's electorate is only permitted if such fravel is relatedto the
discharge of a Minister's official portfolio responsibilities \(seg¢” para/
1.1) and not to service electorate needs.

5.3.3 One-Way Travel and Empty Sectors

It is uneconomical for aircraft to operate a sector without passengers
or on the basis on a one-way flight (ie. travel to or from Brisbane
empty). Approval will not bhe granted for flights of4his mature, unless
exceptional circumstances exist. Occasional enipty seCtors may be
required for operational purposes, i.e. refueliing~or Security of the
aircraft,

5.3.4 Pilot Duty Hours

Civil Aviation legislation provides guidance on' the duty and flight time
a pilot may undertake. Air Wing.pilotduty hgurs are normally limited to
10 hours duty in any one day. On %are occasions, the Chief Pilot may
authorise an extension of duty\hours if it Is considered that safety will
not be compromised. (3¢e alsb para. 6.87.2)

6.0 REQUESTS FOR THE USE.OF AIRCRAFT FCR OFFICIAL TRAVEL
6.1 Booking Enguiries

6.1.1 The Admiinistration Officer, Government Air Wing, State Affairs,
Department of the Premier and Cabinet, is the officer responsible for
aircraft bookings.~Bookings for the aircraft are to be made through that
officér-as early as possible {Telephone: 3898 9500). Aircraft may have
been boopked previously or be unavailable for a range of reasons
including scheduled maintenance.

6.2 Applicaticn Form
6.2.1 Following verbal advice from the Administration Officer that an aircraft

is available on the designated date and time, a formal written request
must be made immediately to that Officer. Requests are to be
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submitted on the Application for Use of Aircraft, all sections of which
must be completed, including “not applicable® notations where
appropriate. The form is to be faxed to the Administration Officer at
teast five (5) calendar days prior to the day of the proposed flight. The
fax number is 3898 9507.

6.2.2 The Application must be accompanied by a copy of the Governor's,
Minister's_or ; -the Head of the Queensland Reconstruction Authofitis
or-Commissishartor-the Queensland FlosdsCommrissicnof-tnguirys
full itinerary for the engagement for which the use of an aircraft is
being sought. Reguesis must be signed by the Minister o 4 Senior

| Policy Adviser.

6.2.3 All persons, including members of the media, who/are travalling in
government aircraft must be clearly identified on the Application/for
official reporting purposes.

6.2.4 For non-Government passengers, an explanation must be provided on
the Application as to the reasons for those passengers being included
on the flight.

[ 6.2.5 On receipt, the Administration Officer; will submit the Application to the
Office of the Premier for consideration:

6.3 Approvél for Aircraft Use

6.3.1 The Premier, or the Premiers’ Delegates, aréresponsible for approving
the use of Government aircraft operated/by the Air Wing. Flights will
not proceed until approvai is granted./ Each request will only be
approved if the Premiei’ Considers that the circumstance warrants the
use of Government ailcraft.

| 6.3.2 -The Chief Pilot is authorised-to approve short notice flights in support

of the organ retrieval program conducted by the Department of Health,
| Queenslanders,Donate, short notice_Search and Rescue and Counter
Disaster flights, Queensland Reconstruction Authority flights, and pilot
training and~checking flights conducted for Air Wing pilots. The Chief
Pilot should wherepracticable, consult with the Premier's Office before
approving these shortnotice flights.

6.3.3 The /Officel_of the Premier will inform the Official Secretary,
GovernmentHouse_or; the Office of the requesting Minister or_the
Queensiand Reconsfruction Authority—the-Queensland-Reconsiructien
Authorirolthe-Queensland Fleeds Commission-of-lnguing— tha_tthat
approval has or has not been granted. If approved, the Office of the
Premier will also provide a copy of the approved Application to the
Administration Officer, Government Air Wing.

Guidelines for the Use of Government Aireralt for Official Transport May 201 2veh 2044
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6.3.4 Following flight approval, all arrangements in regard to flight planning,
itineraries, catering, etc., are to be made direct with the Administration
Officer, Gavernment Air Wing {Telephone 382 89500).

6.3.5 If aflight itinerary is changed subsequent to approval by the Premier if

is-necessary for a further Application setting out the revised itinerary (o

| be submitted for the Premier's consideration (see also paragraph
6.4.32).

6.3.6 All passengers are expected to arrive at the Air Wing al ieast 15
minutes prior to the approved departure time. Changes {o/the road
system at and near Brisbane can lead to extensive traffic delays.

6.4 The need to provide updated details to the Air Wing

6.4.1 For flight planning purposes, the pilot-in-command ‘needs tz-he fully
informed of the desired departure and arrival times for all/flights. The
pilot's planning can then compensate for prédicted winds, adverse
weather, probable Air Traffic Control delays,/efc. Avhich\could affect
times by as much as 20 per cent. In somecircumstances, an earlier
departure time may be appropriate especiaily whére an arrival time is
critical {eg. to ensure the Governor's or Minister's-arrival time at an
official function).

6.4.2 Unusual flight profiles, such as a fty-over_of govérnment facilities, must
be cleared in advance by the/Chief Rilot~ Airspace and operational
constrainis can affect such requésts,

| 6.4.3 1t is essential for the Office of Governor,gr/Minister’s Office to submit to
the Alr Wing an up-tg-date\ copy- of/ the itinerary, names of all
passengers and desirgdiessential timings for all flights on the morning
of the working day pfeceding/the-actual flight. These details must be
faxed to Air Wing on fax-35828 9507. ‘

6.4.4 An up-to-date copy of the itinerary, names of all passengers and
desired/essentiai~timings for all flights undertaken on behalf of the
Queensland /Reconstrustion Authority and—the—Queensland--Fleods
Gemmission-af-inguiry-—should be faxed to the Air Wing on fax 3898
9507 ag soonas practicable.

8.5 Lugdage

6.5.1 Any._ affangeménts required for luggage and cargo are the
respongibility of the most senior ministerial staff member travelling.
Both Air_Wing aircraft have limited baggage storage facilities and
carriage of unusual or bulky items may be restricted where the
maximum number of passengers are to be carried.
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6.5.2 Many items suitable for carriage by ground transport are not suitable
for carriage by air, including many items that are considered goods
dangerous for air carriage (Dangerous Goods). Civil Aviation
legislation resfricts the carriage of such items and Air Wing pilots must
refuse to carry certain such Dangercus Goods. Prior contact with the
Air Wing is required if doubt exists as to the suitability of items for
carriage by air.

6.6 Provision of Catering
6.6.1 Tea, Coffee, water, soft drinks and light snacks are carried o /Air Wing

aircraft at all fimes. Limited catering can be provided where'\flighis of
more that one hours duration occur over the normal meal hours—of:

a. Breakfast 06:00 - 07:30
b. Lunch 12:00 — 13:00
¢. Dinner 17:30 - 19:00

6.6.2 Catering facilities are very limited at many aérodromes visited by Air
Wing aircraft. Limited snacks and sandwiches will be previded where
possible, within the limitation of the safe storade and/handling of
foodstuffs.

| 6.6.3_Requests for special catering should be made at the time of booking to
establish the viability of such reguests. Due. to thé limitations of safe
food storage in Air Wing aircrafl] riot all special fequests may be able
to be met.

Formatted:.List Paragraph, Left, No

5526 G4 Limited service of alcohdlic“bhevérages is also available in {b”"e“‘ or numbering

accordarice with the policy referied towunder paragraph 1.5,

6.7 Cancelled Bookings

6.7.1 The Air Wing is fo be advised as soon as possible if a flight is to be
cancelled. If a Hoeking is cancelled it is necessary to recommence the
process and iegain_the approval of the Premier prior to arranging
anocther flight.

6.8 Aircrew/Xccommadation

6.8.1 Accommodation for pilots is to be arranged by the Government
House/Minister's Office_or, Queensland Reconstruction Authority-or
GueenslapdTHoods Cemmission-ef-taguinseonearned.  Single room
accommadation is required. Crewing is 2 pilots per aircraft.

| 6.82.20n those otcasions when pilots are required to be on duty for more
than 10 hours on any one day they may require, and should be
provided with if requested, day use of accommodation.
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7.0 SECURITY ACCESS TO AIRPORT
7.1 Government Air Wing - Brisbane Airport

7.1.1 All access to the Government Air Wing is through security gatsg
controlled by the Air Wing.

7.1.2 Once a clearance has been given by the Air Wing, all personnel rmusi
proceed directly to, and remain within the Government Air/Wing
building. Depending on security circumsiances, vehicle asséss to-the
Air Wing may not be permitted. In such circumstances, {he adjacent
enclosed car park may be utilised. Ypderpo-—cireumsianceare-vehicled
permitted-en-thetarmas-_Vehicle access (o the tarmac is limiled-and
subject to security restrictions. Vehicle access 1o the tarmac must be
pre arranged through the Air Wing,

7.1.3 Access to the hangar and tarmac is restricied to ‘thbse holding
appropriate Air Side Identification Cards (ASIZ). Persons hot holding
an ASIC requiring access fo the hangar ortafmac/mriust b&escorted by
Air Wing personnel holding an ASIC.,
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ATTACHMENT 1

HEAD OFFICE AND GOVERNMENT AIR WING LOCATIONS

GOVERNMENT AIR WING
Location Government Air Wing
Qantas Maintenance Area Hangar }
Pandanus Avenue
Eagle Farm Q 4007
{On the side opposite to the Domestic
Terminal)
Postal Address PO Box 1018, Eagle Farm, Q 4009
Telephone Administration Offices
389 89500
Facsimile 389 89507
HEAD OFFICE
Location Office’of the/Executive Director, State
Affairs
Govemanece Division
Departmentofthie Premier and Cabinet
Executive Building
100/George,Street
BRISBANE Q 4001
Postal Address PO Rox 15185,
CITY EAST Q4002
Guidelines for the Use of Government Aireraft for Official Transport May 201 Zreh 2045
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ATTACHMENT 2

AIRCRAFT TYPES AND CAPABILITIES

AIRCRAFT ASSETS Fixed Wing Fixed Wing
AIRCRAFT TYPE Hawker 850XP Jat Beech King Air 350
BASED AT Brisbane - Government | Brisbane - Governiment |

Air Wing Air Wing )
POWERED BY 2 Jet Engines 2 Turbo-prop Enginesi4
NUMBER OF 8 8 — 9, However, the
PASSENGERS number may be-Himited

to 8 if luggage is
required to be carried.

NOMINAL RANGE* 2500NM 1600NM
4600KM 3000KM
FLIGHT TIMES 400NM/MHR ZFONM/HR
{(APPROX) TA0KM/HR S00KM/HR
AIRCRAFT CREWING | 2 Pilots | 2 Pilots
AIRCRAFT CALL VH-SGY VH-86GQ
SIGNS N
AIRCRAFT PHONE 0428 783 351 0428783 352
NUMBERS .
* Range is dependent on task nature and numbet Of passengers.
Guidelines for the Use of Government Aireraft for Official Transport May 201 2reh-2001
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ATTACHMENT 3

Department of the Premier and Cabinet
Application for Use of Aircraft \

Details of Applicant: Queensland
Officeholder: Government

Contact: Tel:
Position: . ‘ Fax: /£ /2]

Purpose of
Trip/s:

Justification | Alternative use of travel has been investigated but is unsuitable bécause < NO.
: COMMERCIAL FLIGHTS AVAILABLE TO MEET TIMES REQUIRED:

Reason for Application:

Proposed Flight Departure Details: Proposed Flight Arrival Detailsz

Date Tima Location Date | Time Location
T
!
¥

Date Time Details-.

Critical Deadlines:

List of Passengers: 7
Title / [nitials / Surname Position / Organisation -/ Travelling between Locations No.
Explanatory Note: 1. ,
2' —_—
Authorisation: A\
Officer: . Signature: Date:
Position:

Certification | | certify that thig Application is for
: Official Travel ahd-\no-suitable
alternative mude of traveis availahle.

ltinerary: A copy ofthe-Governor's/Minister's
ltinerary attached: Yes  No (Circle as
appropriate}
Approval:s_ ‘
Aircraft allocated: | Use of aircraft
|"approved:
Hawker Jet / King Air Yes Mo Premier
I Guidelines for the Use of Government Aireraft for Official Transport May 201 2veh 2041
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Athena Honddal(is

From: Ben Myers

Sent: Wednesday, 25 July 2012 11:11 AM

To: Kate Winter

Subject: FW: GAW Guidelines proposed amendments

Attachments: Amended GUIDELINES FOR THE USE OF GOVERNMENT AIRCRAFT FOR OFFICIAL

TRANSPORT V1_minor changes.docx; Amended GUIDELINES FOR THE USE OF
GOVERNMENT AIRCRAFT FOR OFFICIAL TRANSPORT V2_22.05.12.docx

FY! - Amended Guidelines

xecktive Assistant to the Chiel of Staff

.

§FFiEyun i . coald BResner AL Frarribsy of 4
vemadl: Athena.Hondroudakis@ministerial.gld.gov.au
Phoner (07) 3224 5746 | Fae (07) 2210 2187

i
i

From: Sharon Bailey [mailto:Sharon. Bailey@premiers.gld.gov.au]
Sent: Wednesday, 25 July 2012 9:5% AM

To: Jon Grayson

Cc: Ben Myers

Subject: GAW Guidelines proposed amendments

Please find attached proposed amendments to the Government Air wing/Guidelines

V1 contains the minimalist changes and V2 are the more detailed contextual changes
Versions with the tracked changes are alsc availahfe.

Regards

Sharon

This email is intended c<nly for the addressee. Tts use is limited to that intended by
the author at the time/and~it.is not
to be distributed withsut the-author's consent.

Unless otherwise stated, the State of Queensland accepts no . liability for the contents
of this email except where

subsequently cowfizmed in writing. The opinions expressed in this email are those of
the auther and/do ngt necessarily

represent the/views ef the State of Queensland. This email is confidential and may be
subject to a chaim/of legal privilege.

If you have received-this email in‘error, please notify the author and delete this
message Immediately.

1
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FOREWORD

These Guidelines for the Use of Government Aircraft for Official Transport
incorporate the processes o be followed when requesting official travel for
the Governor, Ministers_and ; the Head of the Queensland Reconstruction
Authority and-the Commissioner-for-the Queensland-FloedsCommissionof
Inguiny-on fixed-wing aircraft operated by the Government Air Wing.

The Guidelines are administered on behalf of the Premier by the Government
Alr Wing, State Affairs, Governance Division, Department of the Premier and
Cabinet. The Government Air Wing provides fixed-wing serviges to meet
emergency and other specified aviation needs of the communpity arid-the
Government, including official travel for the Governor and Ministers! The
Head of the Queensland Reconstruction Authority may access fixed-wing
services from the Government Air Wing for the duration of his-appointment.
The Commissionerfor-the Queensland Floods-Commisslonof-ngHirs-may
aceess-fixed-wing-servicesfrom-the Government-Air-Wing forthe Auration-of

The aircraft are not a substitute for normal commércial travel and should only
be used when alternative means are not available/er are’ inadequate to
service official requirements.

An overriding principle for the allocation{of aircraft is that first priority will
always be given to emergency tasks:,, All “ather fequests for use are
processed in the order in which they aretreceived;.and/approved official travel
tasks may be cancelled at short notige/if an/emergency arises.

The use of Government aircraft for. official/ purposes requires my prior
approval on all occasions.

AMNNABLIGH MP
Premier of Queens|and

Guidelines for the Use of Government Aireraft for Official Transport May 2012¢eh 201
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1.0 POLICY
1.1 Official Travel

1.2

1.2.1

1.2.2

1.2.3

1.3

1.31

1.4

1.4.1

Government fixed-wing aircraft are available, subject to certain
conditions, for use by the Governor, Ministers_and; the Head of the
Queensland Reconstruction Authority and-the—Commissionerfor4he
Queensland—Flosds—~Commission—oftnguiry—in carrying out official
duties and fuifilling official responsibilities in relation to the functions
and activities of the Office of Governor, a Minister's Portfolio,
Government;_or the Queensland Reconsfruction Authority,—er-the
Queenstand-Floads-Commission of Inquiry:

Staff, Public Servants and the Media

Governor's staff, Ministerial staff, Public Servants andumembers-of'the
Media are not permitted to travel on-the aircraft unless‘\acGompanying
the Governor or Minister.

However, in circumstances where it is considered/cost &ffoctive and
expeditious for the Governor or Minister to leave ar bogrd a flight at a
place other than Brisbane, staff, public servants. ov the media may
travel unaccompanied for a portion of the journey subject to approval
of the Premier_or the Premier’s delegates. In these circumstances the
most senior staff member on board is to assumetesponsibility from the
Minister or Governor.,

The Head of the Queensland-Reconistruction Authority may travel on
the aircraft unaccompanied-by the-Governar or a Minister.

1Z:A4—The-Commissiongrfor theueensland Floods-Cemmissien-of+- - - § Formatted: Indent: Left: 1.27 cm,
Inquiry-may-travel-onthe-aircraft unatcompanied-by-the-Governorora No bullets or numbering

First line: 0 ¢m, Tab stops: Not at

1.25 cm

<+~ ~ = 71 Formatted: Indent: Left: 1.27 cm,
Guests of the Governor or Minister

Subject to the' approvat.oi-the Premier, the Governor, Minister or; Head
of the Queensland Recoristruction Authority er-the-Gommissionerfor
the—Querhsland-Floods—Commission—of-tnquiry-may be accompanied
by those non-Governinent persons whose attendance they believe on
reagorable grounds will assist in the performance of the task for which
the yse of an afrcraft is being requested.

Annual Report
A full and comprehensive sfatement on the activities of the

Government Air Wing shall be included in each Annual Report of the
Department of the Premier and Cabinet.

Guidelines for the Use of Government Afreralt for Official Transport May 2012¢ch-1011
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1.5 Consumption and Carriage of Alcohclic Beverages on
Government Air Wing Aircraft

1.5.1_The carriage and_responsiblear consumption of alcoholic beverages
on Government Air Wing Aircraft is net permitted, subject fto the
conditions in paragraphs 1.5.2 and 1.5.3 below.

Rl

Formatted: Indent: Left: 1.27 cm,
No/hullets or numbering

- 1.5.2 The Government Air Wing provides a limited supply of alcohol for
service during flights. Alcoholic beverages should be consumed
responsibly, having regard to air and workplace health ard safety
reguirements and is only to be.permitted with the specific/approvat-of
the Premier, Governor or Minister travelling on the individual flight.

bullets or numbeiing

Y- - - '{ Formatted: List Paragraph, Left, No J
184163 _Carriage and consumption of alcohol in cerlain aboriginal
communities is subject to restriction. Prior to depafiure-for, or arrival
at._any Aboriginal community, all alcohol is to be removed sfrom
Government Air Wing aircraft.

2.0 PURPOSE

21 The Guidelines for the Use of Govermment Aircraft for Official Transport
set out the procedures to be followed when requesting official travel for
the Governor, Ministers__and; the Head of-the Queensiand
Reconstruction Authority and-the - Gommissionepforthe Queensland
Floods-Cemmission-oftnguiry—an fixed-wing aircraft operated by the
Government Air Wing.

3.0 APPLICATION OF THE GUIDELINES

3.1 The Guidelines apply/fo~ihie Govéror, Ministers, Head of the
Queensland Recongtrdction | Authority, Gommissioner—for—the
Queensland Hoeods-Lommissier-of thguiry-and their respective staff.

4.0 ADPMINISTRATION OF THE GUIDELINES

41 The Guidelines are. administered on behalf of the Premier by the
Governmerit/Air Wing, State Affairs, Governance Division, Department
of the Prémier and Cabinét.

5.0 INTRODUCTION
5.1 Barkground

5.1.1 The Government Air Wing provides fixed-wing services to meet
emergency and other specified aviation needs of the community and
the Goveriment. These services include Organ Transplant Retrievals,
Search and Rescue (SAR), Counter Disaster Operations (CDQ) and
Official Transport. The Air Wirng comprises the following two fixed- -
wing aircraft, both located at the Brisbane airport -

Guidelines foxr the Use of Government Aircraft for Official Transport May 20f2reh 2011
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

5.2 Allocation of Alrcraft

5.2.1 An overriding principle for the allocation of aircraft is that first-priority
will always be given to emergency tasks. All other requests for use will
normally be processed in the order in which they dre reesived. An
approved request may be cancelled at short notice if\an emergency
task eventuates (eg. the Hawker 8350XP Jet is used for organ
transplant refrieval tasks and, as such, these/short-notice. flights will
take precedence over all other arrangements)/and dircrafbmay be re-
allocated by the Chief Pilot where no /changs/of passenger or
destination is required.

5.2.2 If conflicting aircraft requirements occur, for example, bhetween
Ministers, ministerial staff are to négotiate priorities and advise the
Administration  Officer, Government~ Air Wing, State Affairs
(Governance), Department of the Premier and Cabinet, accordingly.

5.23 In the case of urgent maintenance/problems such as failure on start
up, aircraft may be re-allocated by tihe Chjéf Pilot where no change of
passenger or destination/isrequired. ‘

5.3 Constraints
5.3.1 Alternative Modes of Travel

Alternative modes-of-travel, including commercial airlines, are to be
utilised whgrever possitle.  Government aircraft are not to be a
substitute/for~ather means of fravel and should only be used when
alternative’ means-are not available or are inadequate to service official
requirements.

Due/to the substantial time constraints placed on the Premier, Deputy
Bremier /and-—Treasurer,—use of commercial airlines will rarely he
practical’ and need not be considered as a prerequisite to booking
governiment aircraft for the Premier,_Deputy Premier and Treasurer,

5.3.2 Servicing Electorate Needs
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The use of Government aircraft for travel to, from and within a
Minister's electorate is only permitted if such fravel is related to the
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
or on the basis on a one-way flight (ie. travel fo or from Brisbaneg
empty). Approval will not be granted for flighis of this nature, unless
exceptional circumstances exist. Occasional empty sectops may-be
required for operational purposes, i.e. refuelling or security 6f the

| aircraft.
5.3.4 Pilot Buty Hours

Civil Aviation legislation provides guidance on the duty.and flight time

a pitot may undertake. Air Wing pilot duty houi's’are normally limited to

10 hours duty in any one day. On rare occasions,/the Chief Pilot may

authorise an extension of duty hours if it |5 Sonsidgred that safety will
] not be compromised. (See also para. 6.87.2)

6.0 REQUESTS FOR THE USE OF AIRCRAFT FOR OFFICIAL TRAVEL

6.1 Booking Enquiries

6.1.1 The Administration Officeri. Government/Air Wing, State Affairs,
Department of the Premier and-Cabinet, /is the officer responsible for
aircraft bookings. Bookings-for theaircraft are to be made through that
officer as early as possjble (Telephone: 3898 9500). Aircraft may have
been booked previnusly or be-undvailable for a range of reasons
including scheduled maintérance.

6.2 Application Form

6.2.1 Following veibal advice from the Administration Officer that an aircraft
is available en the designated date and time, a formal written request
must bg/ made~immediately to that Officer. Requests are to be
submitted on the-Application for Use of Aircraft, all sections of which
musf -be\ completed, including “not applicable” notations where
appropriate. The form is to be faxed to the Administration Officer at
{east five-{5)-caléndar days prior to the day of the proposed flight. The
fax.numiber is 3898 9507.

6.2.2 The Application must be accompanied by a copy of the Governor's,
Minister's_or,—the Head of the Queensiand Reconstruction Authority’s
or-Gemmissionerfor-the-Queensland-Floods-Gemmission-of Inquiry's
full itinerary for the engagement for which the use of an aircraft is
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being sought. Requests must be signed. by the Minister or a Senior
Policy Adviser,

6.2.3 All persons, including members of the media, who are travelling in
government aircraft must be clearly identified on the Application for
official reporting purposes.

6.2.4 For non-Government passengers, an explanation must be provided en
the Application as to the reasons for those passengers being/included
on the flight.

6.2.5 On receipt, the Administration Officer, will submit the Applicatiori to the
Office of the Premier for consideration.

6.3 Approval for Aircraft Use

6.3.1 The Premier, or the Premiers’ Delegates, are responsible for approving
the use of Government aircraft operated by the Air/Wing. \Blights will
not proceed until approval is granied. Each réduest/will only be
approved if the Premier considers that the cxrvumstanre warrants the
use of Government aircraft.

6.3.2 The Chief Pitot is authorised to approve-short notive flights in support
of the organ retrieval program conducted-hy-the/Department of Health,
Queenstanders Donate, short notice_Search~and Rescue and Counter
Disaster flights, Queensland Retonstruction-Authority flights, and pilot
training and checking flights condueted for Aif Wing pilots.

6.3.3 The Office of the Premier\ will ~inform the Official Secretary,
Government House,;; the Office_of the requesting Minister_or the
Reconstruction Authctity-the Queensland-Resonstruction-Authorityor
the-Queensland Floods~GCormission—oftnguiry, that approval has or
has not been granted. If approved, the Office of the Premier will also
provide a copy of the approved Appfication to the Administration

Officer, Government Air Wing.

6.3.4 Following/light approval, all arrangements in regard to flight planning,
itinerarigs{ catering, etc., are to be made direct with the Administration
Officer, Government Air Wing (Telephone 389 89500},

6.3.5 If a flight jtinerary is changed subsequent to approval by the Premier it

‘ - is_hecessary for-a further Application setting out the revised itinerary to

be “submitted for the Premier's consideration (see also paragraph
6.4.32).

6.3.6 All passengers are expected to arrive at the Air Wing at least 15
minutes prior to the approved depariure time. Changes to the road
system at and near Brisbane can lead to extensive traffic delays.
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6.4 The need to provide updated details to the Air Wing

6.4.1 For flight planning purposes, the pilot-in-command needs to be fully
informed of the desired departure and arrival tfimes for all flights. The
pilot's planning can then compensate for predicted winds, adverse
weather, probable Alr Traffic Control delays, etc. which could afféct
times by as much as 20 per cent. In some circumstances, an gdrlier
departure time may be appropriate especially where an arrival timg is
critical (eg. to ensure the Governor's or Minister's arrival time’ at an
official function).

6.4.2 Unusual flight profiles, such as a fly-over of government facilities, mugt
be cleared in advance by the Chief Pilot. Airspace and operationdl
constraints can affect such requests.

6.4.3 It is essential for the Office of Governor, Minister's Officg to submit to
the Air Wing an up-to-date copy of the /finerary,\riames of all
passengers and desired/essential timings fof all flights on the morning
of the working day preceding the actual flight. Thése détails must be
faxed to Air Wing on fax 3898 9507.

6.4.4 An up-to-date copy of the itinerary, names of all/ passengers and
desired/essential timings for all flighis undertaken on behalf of the
Queensiand Reconstruction Authority- and—the‘Queenstand—Floods
Commission-of-rquiry-should/be faxed tofHe’ Air Wing on fax 3898
9507 as soon as practicable./

6.5 Luggage

6.5.1 Any arrangements /required._for _luggage and cargo are the
responsibility of the.maost seniorministerial staff member travelling.
Both Air Wing aircraft-hate limited baggage sforage facilities and
carriage of unusual or bulky, items may be restricted where the
maximum numbet of passengerfs are to be carried.

6.5.2 Many items/suitable for-carriage by ground transport are not suitable
for carriage by air, incldding many items that are considered goods
dangerous for ~air carriage (Dangerous Goods). Civil Aviation
legislafion restricis the carriage of such items and Air Wing pilots must
refuseto carry certain such Dangerous Goods. Prior contact with the
Air/Wing lis_required if doubt exists as to the suitability of items for
carriage/by air:

6.6 Provision of Catering
6.6.1 Tea, Coffee, water, soft drinks and light snacks are carried on Air Wing

aircraft at all times. Limited catering can be provided where flights of
more that one hours duration occur over the normal meal hours of:
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a. Breakfast 06:00 - 07:30
b. Lunch 12:00 —13:00
c. Dinner 17:30 — 19:00

6.6.2 Catering facilities are very limited at many aerodromes visited by Air
Wing aircraft. Limited snacks and sandwiches will be provided whéré
possible, within the [imitation of the safe storage and handling<of
foodstuffs,

6.6.3 Requests for special catering should be made at the time of bookingto
establish the viability of such requests. Due to the limitations of safe
food storage in Air Wing aircraft, not all special requests may-ke able
to be met.

-—— — -

6.6.4 Limited service of alcoholic beverages is also available.in aceerdance
with the policy referred to under_paragraph 1.5.
6.6.3 - . : €= 1 Formatted: Indent: Left: 1.27 cm,j

Mo bullets or numbering

Formatted: List Paragraph, Left, No
bullets or numbering

6.7 Cancelled Bookings

6.7.1 The Air Wing is to be advised as soon as possible~f & flight is to be
cancefled. If a booking is cancelled it is necessary to-f'ecommence the
process and regain the approval ¢f the Premiei prior fo arranging
another flight.

6.8 Aircrew Accommodation

6.8.1 Accommodation for pilots is {o~be_artahged by the Government
House/Minister's Office L0r Queensiand’ Reconstruction Authority—or
Queensland-Fleods-Commission-of -inquiry-—cencerned.  Single room
accommodation is reduired. /Crewiigis 2 pilots per aircraft.

6.84.2 On those occasions when pilois, are required to be on duty for more
than 10 hours{on_any one day they may require, and should be
provided with/if roquested, day use of accommodation.

7.0 SECURITY ACCESS TO AIRPORT
7.1 Government Air Wing - Brisbane Airport

7.1.1 All ~access totie Government Air Wing is through security gates
conirolied by the Air Wing. :

7.1.2 Once a clearance has been given by the Air Wing, all personnel must
proceed directly to, and remain within the Government Alr Wing
building. Depending on security circumstances, vehicle assess to the
Air Wing may not be permitted. In such circumstances, the adjacent
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enclosed car park may be utilised.-Under ne-cireumsianee-are-vehicles

permitted-on-the tarmae. Vehicle access to the tarmac is limited and
subiject to security restrictions. Vehicle access to the tarmac must he

pre arranged through the Air Wing.

7.1.3 Access to the hangar and tarmac is restricted to those holdirg
appropriate Air Side Identification Cards (ASIC). Persons not holdirig
an ASIC requiring access o the hangar or tarmac must be escortéd by
Air Wing personnel holding an ASIC.
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ATTACHMENT 1

HEAD OFFICE AND GOVERNMENT AIR WING LOCATIONS

GOVERNMENT AIR WING
Location Government Air Wing
Qantas Maintenance Area Hangar A
Pandanus Avenue
Eagle Farm Q 4007
{On the side opposite to the Domestic
Terminat)
Postal Address PO Box 1018, Eagle Farm, Q 4002
Telephone Administration Officer,
389 89500
Facsimile 3892 89507
HEAD OFFICE
Location Office of the’Executivé Director, State
Affairs
Governance Divigion
Departmentaf the Premier and Cabinet
Executive Building
100’ George Street
BRISBANE Q4001
Postal Address PO Rax 15185,
CITY EAST Q 4002
Guidcﬁncls Tor the Use of Government Aireraft for Official Transport Mny 201 2¢el 201
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ATTACHMENT 2

AIRCRAFT TYPES AND CAPABILITIES

AIRCRAFT ASSETS Fixed Wing Fixed Wing
AIRCRAFT TYPE Hawker 850XP Jet Beech King Air 350
BASED AT Brisbane - Government | Brisbane - Governiment /|

Air Wing Air Wing _f
POWERED BY 2 Jet Engines 2 Turbo-prop/Engines _|
NUMBER OF 8 8 — 9. However, the
PASSENGERS number may \be-imited j
: to 8 if luggage is
required.to be carried:
NOMINAL RANGE?* 2500NM 1600NM
- 4600KM J000KM
'| FLIGHT TIMES 400NM/HR ZFONM/HK
{APPROX) 7T40KM/HR { BOOKM/HR
AIRCRAFT CREWING | 2 Pilots | 2 Piicts
AIRCRAFT CALL VH-SGY VHSGQ
SIGNS .
AIRCRAFT PHONE 0428 783 351 0428783 352
NUMBERS .
¥ Range is dependent on task natuie and numbéy/of passengers.
Guidelines for the Use of Government Aiveraft for Official Transport May 201 2veli-2014
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ATTACHMENT 3
Department of the Premier and Cabinet
Application for Use of Aircraft g
Details of Applicant: Queensland
Officeholder: Government
Contact: Tei: |
Position: Fax: Jm
| Purpose of
Trip/s:

Justification

Alternative use of travel has been investigated but is unsuitable hetause =NQ
COMMERCIAL FLIGHTS AVAILABLE TO MEET TIMES REQUIRED:

Reason for Application:

Proposed Flight Departure Details:

Proposed Flight Arrival/Details:

Date

Time Lacation

Date Time

Location

Date

Time

Detalis.

Critical Deadlines:
List of Passengers:

Title / [nitials / Surname

Position | Organisation/Z Travelling between Locations

No.

Explanatory Note: 1.

2.

Authorisation:

Officer:

Signature:

Pasition:

Certification

I certify that this Application is-for
Official Travé)and nie.suitable

alternative mode of travelis available.

Date:

ftinerary:

A copy of the-Governor's/Minister’s
{tineraryattached:

Yes No (Circle as
appropriate)

Approval:.

Aircraft allocated: Use of aircraft

approved:

Hawker Jet / King Air Yos No

Premier

[ Guidcelines for the Use of Government Adreraflt for Qificial Transporé

RTI Document No.54




Thisdocument has been releaséd under the RIGHT TO INFORMATION ACT 2009 (QId)

Department of the Premier and Cabinet Page 1

GUIDELINES FOR THE USE OF GOVERNMENT AIRCRAFT
FOR OFFICIAL TRANSPORT
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FOREWORD

The Government Air Wing provides fixed wing air_services to assist in
meeting the demanding fravel commitments of the Premier, the Governor and
Ministers. The Air Wing will also, when available, contribute to meeting the
emergency and other specified aviation needs of the community.

These Guidelines for the Use of Government Aircraft for Official Transport
incorporate the managemeni processes io be followed when requesting
official travel on fixed wing aircrait operated by the Government Air Wing.t
Travel may be approved for Ministers, Her-the Governor;-Ministefs’and; e
Head of the Queensland Reconstruction Authority, -and-the Comrmssienef for
the Queensland Floods Commission-of Inquiry-on-fixed-wing-aircraff-ocperated
by-the - GevernmentAir-Wing:

The Guidelines-are-administered-en-bebalf-of-the-Premicr by the Sovarpment

Al Wing—State Affairs, Gevernance Division-Departmentof the/Premier-and
Cabinet— The-Government-Alr Wing providesfixed-wing sepvieesto-meet
emergency—and-otherspecified—aviationneeds—eoithe—dommunify-and-the
Gevernment;-ineluding- official-travelfor-the-Getermer/and-Ministers-—The
Head-—of-the-Queensland-Reconstruction-Authorty-may-actdssfixed-wing
services—fromthe Gevernment- Al Wingfoerthe-duratiep~ef his-appointment:
Fhe Commissionerfor-the Queensland Floads Commistien—of Irgquine-—may
aceess-fixed-wing-services-from-the-Government-Alr Wing for- the-duration-of
her appeintment:

The aircraft are-nota-substitutefor-Hermaledmmereial-travel-and-should only
he used when alternative means oitravel are not available or are inadequate
to service official requirements.

An—everiidingprineiple{feriihe-allopation of -aircraft-is-that first prioribywill
. always—be—given—lo—emelfgeney Aasks—~All- other -requests—for—use—are
processedin-the-orderin-whientheyarereceived;-and-approved-official travel

tasks-may-becancolled-atshortnetice ifan-emergeneyarises:

The use of Goverpment-aircraft for official purposes requires my prior
approval on all ogCasions.

Campbeil Newman
ANNABLIGHAME
Premier of QUeensland

*- - {Furmatted: Indent: Left: 1.25 cm ]
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1.0 POLICY
1.1 Official Travel

1.1.1 Government fixed-wing aircrafi are available for use by the Premier;,
the Governor, Ministers and the Head of the Queensland
Reconsiruction Authority subject-te-certain-cenditions;for use-by4ke
Goverpor—Ministers—the Head of the QueenslandRecensiructiog
Autharity—and —the—GCommissioner—for —the Queensland Flosds
GCermmisston-ef-nguiry-in carrying out official duties and fufillirig-official
responsibilities in relation to the functions and activities /of these
offices. Use of the aircraft is subject fo the provisions ‘efthese
Guidelines, Office-of Governora-Minister's Porifolio Gevernment—the
Queenstand—Reeonstrdetion—Authorily —or the Queensiand —Fldeds
GCommission-ef-lnguiry

1.2 Staff, Public Servants and the Media

| 1.2.1 Gevernors-staff,_Governor's staff.— Minister(al staff,/ Public’ Servants
and members of the Media are not permitied-to travel on/the aircraft
unless accompanying the Governor or Minister:

1.2.2 However, in circumstances where it/is considered cost effective and
| expeditious for the-Geovernor-or_the Governor or‘Minister to leave or
board a flight at a place other than’ Brisbane, staff, public servants or
the media may travel unaccompanied, for a_portion of the journey
I subject to approval of the Premiér or/he Premier's delegates. [n these
circumstances the most senior staff member on board is to assume
| responsibility_for adherenceto_these-Guidelines from the Minister or
Governor. '

1.2.3 The Head of the Queensland/Reconstruction Authority may travel on
the aircraft unaccompanied by the Governor or a Minister.

124 The-Commissigherfor-the-Queensland Floods Commissionof-Inguiry+- - - -{ Formatted: No bullets or numbering
ma&#ave!—en—bhw&aﬁbu%e&empaned—by—th&@eveme%M&ms@e&

line: 0 cm, Tab stops: Mot at 1.25 cm J
Formatted: Outline numbered + J

1.3 +3—Guests of the Governor or Minister
ot
-or-Minister Level: 2 + Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, .
+ Start at; 2 + Alignment: Left +
Aligned at: 0cm + Tab after; 1.24

€= == 1 Formatted: Indent; Left; 0 cm, First
! c¢m + Indent at: 1.24 cm

1.3.1 Subject t6 the approval of the Premier, the Governor, Minister or; Head
of/the Queensland Reconstruction Authority orthe Commissionerfor
the—QueenslandFloodsGommission-of-nguiry-may be accompanied
by thesé-non-Government persons whose attendance they believe on
reasonable grounds wili assist in the performance of the task for which
the use of an aircratt is being requested.

| Formatted: Indent: Left: 1.24 cm,
Tab stops: Not at .25 cm

1.4 Annual Report
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1.41 A full and comprehensive siatement on the activities of the
Government Air Wing shall be incdluded in each Annual Report of the
Department of the Premier and Cabinet.

1.5 Consumption'and Carriage of Alcoholic Beverages on
Government Air Wing Aircraft

1.6.1 The carriage and responsibleor consumption of alcoholic beverages
on Government Air Wing Aifrcraft is not permitted, subject to~thé
conditions in paragraphs 1.5.2 and 1.5.3 below,

Formatted: Indent: Left: 1.27 cm,

1.5.2 The Government Air Wing provides a limited supply of alcohei for L‘m bullets or numbering

service during flights.  Alcoholic beverages should be sensumed
responsibly. having regard to air and workplace health and safety
requirements and is only to be permitted with the specific-approval of
the Premier, Governor or Minister fravelling on the individual fight.

Formatted: List Paragraph, Left, No
bullets or numbering

———
L5441 53 Carriage and consumption of alcohol in _certain aboriginal 1
" communities is. subiect to restriction. Prior/to’ depditure for, or arrival
at, any Aboriginal community, all alcoliol is to/ be removed from
Government Air Wing aircraft,

2.0 PURPOSE

2.1 The Guidelines for the Use of Government-Aircralt for Official Transport
set out the procedures to be foliowed whenreglesting official travel for
the-GeovermeorMinisters,theHead ot the-Queensland Reconstruction
Authority—and—the—Commilstionet—for-%4he—Queensland Floods
GCommission—ef—guiry-—on fixed-wing aircraft operated by the
Government Air Wing.

3.0 APPLICATICN OF THE GUIDELINES

3.1 The Guidelines apply to the—Geverner—the Governor, Ministers, the
Head of the Queensland Reconstruction Authority, Commissicnerfor
the—Queensland>Eleads-Commission—eofdnguirny—and their respective
staif.

4.0 ADMINISTRATION OF THE GUIDELINES

4.1  The Guidelines are administered on behalf of the Premier by the
Government Air Wing-State-Affairs,-Governanee-Division;-Department

of the Premieir-and Cabinet.
5.0 INTRGCDUCTION

5.1  Background
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5.1.1 The Government Air Wing provides fixed-wing services to assist in
meeting the demanding travel commitments of the Premier, the
Governor and Ministers.meet-emergeney—and-otherspecified-aviation
needsof-the-cemmunifyand-the Gevernment: The Air Wing will also,
when_available, contribute to meeting the emergency and other,
specified aviation needs of the community These services includé
Organ Transplant Retrievals, Search and Rescue (SAR), Couritgr
Disaster Operations {CDO) and Official Transport. The Air ¥Wing
comprises the following two fixed-wing aircraft, both located at the
Brisbane airport -

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

‘ 5.2.1 An-overridingprineiple-forthe-allocation-of aireraft-is/that first priority
will-always-be-givento-emergeney-tasks:><All etherdaquests for use will

normally be processed in the order in whish tHey are received. An
approved request may be cancélied af short nofice if an emergency
task eventuates (eg. the Hawker /850XP-~ Jet is used for organ
transplant retrieval tasks-and;-as<guch—these-short-notice flights-will
take-precedenceo-overall-otherarrangerients) and aircraft may be re-
allocated by the Chief Pilot-in\consultation with the Premier's office
where no change of passengey or destination is required.

5.2.2 If conflicting aircraft requitemenis occur, for example, between
Ministers, ministerial staff are ip negotiate priorities and advise the
Administration { Officer, Government Air Wing, State Affairs
(Governance); Department of the Premier and Cabinet, accordingly.

5.2.3 In the cage.ofurgent maintenance problems such as failure on start
up, aircraft may be.re-allocated by the Chief Pilot where no change of
passenger or desfination is required.

5.3 Caonstraints

5.3.1 Alternative Modes of Travel
Alternative ‘modes of travel, including commercial airlines, are to be

utiised wherever possible. Government aircraft are--nette—be—a
substitutefor—ethermeans—ef-travel-and-should only be used when
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| alternative means of travel are not available or are inadequate to
service official requirements.

Due to the substantial time constraints placed on the Premier, Deputy -
Premier and Treasurer, ,-use of commercial airlines will rarely be
practical and need not be considered as a prerequisite to booking

I Ggovernment aircraft for the Premier, Deputy Premier and Treasuigy,

5.3.2 Servicing Electorate Needs

The use of Government aircraft for travel to, from apid” withiim—a
Minister's electorate is only permitted if such travel is rélatedto"the
discharge of a Minister’s official portfolio responsibllities™{seé para.
1.1) and not to service electorate needs.

5.3.3 One-Way Travel and Empty Secfors

It is uneconomical for aircraft to operate a seclor without passengers

or on the basis on a one-way flight {ie. &avel {0 or fron Brishane

empty). Approval will not be granted for flights 4f this siature, unless

exceptional circumstances exist. Occasionalempty Agctors may be

required for operational purposes, i.e. refueliing-ar/security of the
| aircraft.

5.3.4 Pilot Duty Hours

Civil Aviation legislation provides guidance on the duty and flight time

a pilot may undertake. Air Wing piiof duty’hours are normally limited to

10 hours duty in any one day. ~Ontare/occasions, the Chief Pilot may

authorise an extension of-duty hours if/it is considered that safety will
| not be compromised. {Sée alsq para. 6.87.2)

6.0 REQUESTS FOR THE USE.OF AIRCRAFT FOR OFFICIAL TRAVEL
6.1 Booking Epnguiries

6.1.1 The Adrministration Oificer, Government Air Wing, State Affairs,
Departimant of the Premier and Cabinet, is the officer responsible for
aircraft bookings:~Bookings for the aircraft are to be made through that
officer-ag early as possible (Telephone: 3898 9500). Aircraft may have
b2en booked previously or be unavailable for a range of reasons
includingschedled maintenance.

6.2 Application Form
6.2.1 Following verbal advice from the Adminisiration Officer that an aircraft

is available on the designated date and time, a formal written request
must be made immediately to that Officer. Requesis are to be
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submitied -on the Application for Use of Aircraft, all sections of which
must be completed, including “not applicable” notations where
appropriate. The form is to be faxed to the Administration Officer at
least five (5) calendar days prior to the day of the proposed flight. The
fax number is 3898 9507.

6.2.2 The Application must be accompanied by a copy of the Governoi’s,
Minister's_or ——the Head of the Queensland Reconstruction Authofity’s
or Commissioner for the Queensland Floods Commission of Inquiry's
full itinerary for the engagement for which the use of an aireraft is
being sought. Requests must be signed by the Minister of a Senior

[ Policy Adviser.

6.2.3 All persons, including members of the media, who are travelling in
government aircraft must be clearly identified on the Application’ for
official reporting purposes.

6.2.4 For non-Government passengers, an explanaiion must be provided on
the Application as to the reasons for those fassepgérs being included
on the flight.

| 6.2.5 On receipt, the Administration Officer,will submit the Apphcatron to the
Office of the Premier for consideration:

6.3 Approval for Aircraft Use

6.3.1 The Premier, or the Premiers’ Delegates, ai'e’responsible for approving
the use of Government aireraft operated’by the Air Wing. Flights will
not proceed until appreval it granted./ Each request will only be
approved if the Premier/consjders-that the circumstance warrants the
use of Government aireraft.

] 6.3.2 -The Chief Pilot is authorised {0 approve short notice flights in support

of the organ retfieval program conducted by the Department of Health,
l Queenslandei's Donate, short notice_Search and Rescue and Counter
Disaster flights, Queensland Reconstruction Authority flights, and pilot
training and-checking flights conducted for Air Wing pilots. The Chief
Pilot showid wherepracticable, consult with the Premier's Office before
approving these shorbnatice flights.

6.3.3 The/ Office—of the Premier will Inform the Official Secretary,
Govermnment House_or, the Office of the requesting Minister_or_the
Queensland Reconstruction Authoritythe Quesnstand-Recepstruction
Autherity-orthe-Queensiand FleedsCemmission-ofInguiry,— tha tthat
approvai has or has not been granted. If approved, the Office of the
Premier will also provide a copy of the approved Application to the
Administration Officer, Government Air Wing.

Guidelines for the Use of Government Aircraft for Official Transport May 2012reh-2013
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6.3.4 Following flight approval, all arrangements in regard to flight planning,
itineraries, catering, etc., are to be made direct with the Administration
Officer, Government Afr Wing (Telephone 389 89500),

6.3.5 If a flight itinerary is changed subsequent to approval by the Premier jt
is necessary for a further Application setting out the revised itinerary/to
be submitted for the Premier's consideration (see also paragraph

[ 6.4.32).

6.3.6 All passengers are expected to arrive at the Air Wing atleast 1
minutes prior to the approved departure time. Changes tw the roa
system at and near Brishane can lead to extensive traffic delays:

5
d

6.4 The need to provide updated details fo the Air Wing

6.4.1 For flight planning purposes, the pilet-in-command \needs fo—he’ fully
informed of the desired departure and arrival times for alf fiights. The
pilot's planning can then compensate for predicted winds, adverse
weather, prohable Air Traffic Control delays/ etc./which\could affect
times by as much as 20 per cent. In sonielcircunistances, an earlier
departure time may be appropriate especiaily Whiere an/arrival time is
critical (eg. fo ensure the Governor's or Minister's.arrival time at an
official function).

6.4.2 Unusual flight profiles, such as a/Aly-over of government facilities, must
/ be cleared in advance by the/Zhief, Pilot Ajfspace and operational
constraints can affect such requests:

] 6.4.3 It is essential for the Office of GovernorayMinister's Office to submit to
the Air Wing an up-to-date\ copy. of the itinerary, names of all
passengers and desired/essential timings for all flights on the morning
of the working day precedifig the-actual flight. These details must be
faxed fo Air Wing on fax-38%8 9507.

6.4.4 An up-to-date/copy of the ifinerary, names of all passengers and
desired/essentiai~timings for all flights undertaken on behalf of the
Queensland/ Reconstruction Authority and-the Queensland—Floods
Commisgienef-Inquiry-should be faxed to the Air Wing on fax 3898
9507 as soonags practicable.

6.5 Luggage

6.5.1 ‘Any_ arrangements required for luggage and cargo are the
responéibility of the most senior ministerial staff member traveiling. .
Both Air "Wing aircraft have limited baggage sforage facilities and
carriage of unusual or bulky items may be restricted where the
maximurn humber of passengers are to be carried.

Guidelines for the Use of Government Afreraft fox Official Transport May 201 2rch- 2041
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6.5.2 Many items suitable for carriage by ground transport are not suitable
for carriage by air, including many items that are considered goods
dangerous for air carriage (Dangerous Goeds). Civil Aviation
legislation resfricts the carriage of such items and Air Wing pilots must
refuse to carry certain such Dangerous Goods. Prior contact with the
Air Wing is required if doubt exists as to the suitability of items for
carriage by air.

6.6 Provision of Catering
6.6.1 Tea, Coffee, water, soft drinks and light snacks are carried oh/Air Wihg

aircraft at all times. Limited catering can be provided where flights of
more that one hours duration occur over the normal meal hours of;

a. Breakfast 06:00 - 07:30
b. Lunch 12:00 — 13:00
c. Dinner 17:30 ~19:00

6.6.2 Catering facilities are very limited at many defodromes visited by Air
Wing aircraft. Limited snacks and sandwiches wili be provided where
possible, within the limitation of the safe storage apd handling of
foodstuffs.

] 6.6.3 _Requests for special catering should be made at the time of booking to
establish the viabifity of such regdests. Bue fo/the limitations of safe
food storage in Air Wing aircraft, nof ail, special/requests may be able
to be met.

Formatted: List Paragraph, Left, No ]

-
8:5-36.6.4  Limited service of alcoholic “beveiages is also available in wb“ﬁets or numbering

accerdance with the poligyreferied townder paragraph 1.5.

6.7 Cancelied Bookings

6.7.1 The AirWing is to be advised_ss soon as possible if a flight is to be
cancelled. If a booking is cancelled it is necessary to recommence the
process and/fegain_the approval of the Premier prior to arranging
another flight;

6.8 Aircrevw. Accommuadation

6.8.1 Accomimodation for pilois is fo be arranged by the Government
House/Minister's_Office_or; Queensiand Reconsfruction Authority—er
Queensland-Floods Commission—of lnguiry-eoncerned. Single room

accommodation is required. Crewing is 2 pilots per aircraft,

| 6.87.2 On those occasions when pilots are required to be on duty for more
than 10 hours on any one day they may require, and should be
provided with if requested, day use of accommodation.

Guidelines for the Use of Government Afyeraft for Official Transport May 20 2reh 20011
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7.0 SECURITY ACCESS TO AIRPORT
7.1  Governmant Air Wing - Brishane Airport

711 All access to the Government Air Wing is through security gate$
controlled by the Air Wing.

7.1.2 Once a clearance has been given by the Air Wing, all personne! must
proceed directly to, and remain within the Government /Al Wing
building. Depending on security circumstances, vehicle asgess fothe
Air Wing may not be permitted. In such circumstances, the adjacent
enciosed car park may be utilised.-Underno-cireumstance aravehicles
permitted-on-the tarmac: Vehicle access to the tarmac is limited and
subject to security restrictions. Vehicle access to the farmac_must be
pre arranged through the Air Wing.

7.1.3 Access to the hangar and tarmac is resfricted to ‘those holding
appropriate Air Side [dentification Cards {ASIC). Fersons hot holding
an ASIC requiring access to the hangar or/tarmac mnust be escorted by
Air Wing personnel holding an ASIC.

Guidelines for the Use of Government Aircraf¢ for Official Transport May 2012rch204
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ATTACHMENT 1

HEAD OFFICE AND GOVERNMENT AIR WING LOCATIONS

GOVERNMENT AIR WING
Location Government Air Wing
Qantas Maintenance Area Hangar 4
Pandanus Avenue
Eagle Farm Q 4007
{On the side opposite to the Domestic
Terminal)
Postal Address PO Box 1018, Eagle Farm, Q 4009
Telephone Administraiion Officer
389 89500
Facsimile 389 B9507
HEAD OFFICE
Location Office df the’Executive Director, State
Affairs
Governance Division
Peparimentofthe Premier and Cahinet
Executive Building
100/GeurgerSireet
BRISBANE Q 4001
Postal Address PO Box 15185,
CITY EAST @ 4002
Guidelines for the Use of Government Airevaft for Official Transport May 2012¢eh-2041
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ATTACHMENT 2

AIRCRAFT TYPES AND CAPABILITIES

AIRCRAFT ASSETS Fixed Wing Fixed Wing
AIRCRAFT TYPE Hawker 850XP Jet Beech King Air 350
BASED AT Brisbane - Government | Brishane - Government /|

Air Wing Air Wing 4'
POWERED BY 2 Jet Engines 2 Turbo-prop Eruginesﬂm4
NUMBER OF 8 8 — 9. Howeyer, the
PASSENGERS ' number may be-timited ;
to 8 if luggage is
required to be carried:
NOMINAL RANGE* 2500NM 1600NRK
L 4600KM 3000KM
't FLIGHT TIMES 400NM/HR ZPONM/HR
(APPROX) . TA40KM/HR A BOOKM/HR
AIRCRAFT CREWING | 2 Pilots | 2 Pilots
AIRCRAFT CALL VH-5GY VHSGQ
SIGNS .
AIRCRAFT PHONE 0428 783 351 | 0428783 352
NUMBERS .
¥ Range is dependent on task natUre and number/of passengers.
Guidelines for the Use of Government Aireraft for Official Transport ‘ _Ma@ﬂ:—h—zm-}
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ATTACHMENT 3

Department of the Premier and Cabinet
Application for Use of Aircrafi

Details of Applicant: Queensland
Officeholder: Government

Tel: |
Fax: 1_

Contact:
Position:

Purpose of
Trip/s:

Justification | Alternative use of {ravel has been investigated but is unsuitable because=NO
: COMMERCIAL FLIGHTS AVAILABLE TO MEET TIMES REQUIRED,

Reason for Application:

Proposed Flight Deparfure Details: Proposed Flight Arrival Dstails:
Date Time Location Date | Time Location

1<

Date Time Detaiis_:

Critical Deadlines:
List of Passengers:

Title / Initials / Surname Position / Orgarisation~ Travelling between Locations No.
Explanatory Note: 1. RS
2,
Authorisation: . ‘
Officer: Signature; Date:
Position: N

Certification | [ cerlily {hat this Application is Tor

v Official Travéland no suitable
alternative mode of fravelis available,
Itinerary: A copy of the Governor's/iflinister's

linerary/attached: Yes  No (Circle as
appropriate)
Approval: ~
Aircraft allocated: Use of aircraft
approved:
Hawker Jet / King Air Yes No Premier
l Guidelines for the Use of Government Aircraft for Official Transport May 201 2xeh-2011
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Daniel Smith

From: Kate Winter

Sent: Wednesday, 25 July 2012 11:14 AM

To: Sharon Bailey

Subject: RE: GAW Guidelines proposed amendments

HI Sharon,

Could I please get a copy of the tracked changes version?

Kind regards,

Kate Winter
Deputy Chief of Staff

Office of the Premier

Level 15 Executive Building, 100 George Street! Brisbane
Telephone +61°7 3224 7335

Parl House Telephone +61 7 3406 7175

Facsimile +61 7 3221 3631

Mobilg/CTP!

Email kate.winter@ministerial.qld.gov.au

From: Ben Myers

Sent: Wednesday, 25 Jdly 2012-11:11 AM

To: Kate Winter

Subject: FW: GAW Guidelines proposed amendments

FYI - Amended Guidelines

Athena Hondroudakis | Executive Assistant to the Chief of Staff |
Office of The Hon. Campbell Newman MP | Premier of Queensland |

E-mail: Athena.Hondroudakis@ministerial.qld.gov.au
Phone: (07) 3224 5746 | Fax: (07) 3210 2187

28
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From: Sharon Bailey [mailto:Sharon.Bailey@premiers.gld.gov.au]
Sent: Wednesday, 25 July 2012 9:59 AM
To: Jon Grayson -

Cc: Ben Myers
Subject: GAW Guidelines proposed amendments

29
RTI Document No.69




Thisdocument has been released under the RIGHT TO INFORMATION ACT 2009 (Qld)

Daniel Smith

From: Sharon Bailey

Sent: Wednesday, 25 July 2012 11:17 AM

To: Kate Winter .

Subject: ~ FW: GAW Guidelines amendments - alternate versions

Attachments: Amended GUIDELINES FOR THE USE OF GOVERNMENT AIRCRAFT FOR OFFICIAL
TRANSPORT V1_minor changes.docx; Amended GUIDELINES FOR THE USE OF
GOVERNMENT AIRCRAFT FOR OFFICIAL TRANSPORT V2_22.05.12.docx

Hi Kate

Here itis

Sharon

This email is intended only for the addressee. Its use is|limitéd tg that intended by
the author at the time and it is not
to be distributed without the author's consent.

Unless otherwise stated, the State of Queensland accepts no, liability for the contents
of this email except where

subsequently coenfirmed in writing., The opinions gxpresséd{ in this email are those of
the author and do not necessarily ) ' '

represent the views of the State of Queensland./ Thiss/email” is confidential and may be
subject to a claim of legal privilege.

If you have received this_émail in error, please notify the author and delete this
message imnmediately.
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
incorporate the processes to be followed when requesting official travel for
the Governor, Ministers and ; the Head of the Queensland Reconstruchon
Authority a
{reuin-on f;xed-wmg alrcraft operated by the Government Air Wlng

. The Guidelines are administered on behalf of the Premier by the Governnient
Air Wing, State Affairs, Governance Division, Department of the Premier and
Cabinet. The Government Air Wing provides fixed-wing services to-mieet = v/
emergency and other specified aviation needs of the community’ and the
Government, including official travel for the Governor and Ministets. ~The
Head of the Queensland Reconstruction Authority may access fixed-wing
services from the Government Air Wing for the duration of his appeintment /-
The Commissioner for the Queensland Floods Commission of inguiry-may.
aceess fixed-wing services-from-the Government Air Wing for the duration of
herappointment. :

The aircraft are not a substitute for normal commercial iravel and should only
be used when alternative -means are not avallable or are inad2quate fo
service official requirements.

An overriding principle for the allocation of aircraft is that first priority will
. always be given to emergency fasks. Albother requests for use are
‘processed in the arder in which they are received, and appioved official travel
tasks may be cancelled at short notice if an'emergency-arises. -

The use of Government aircraft for<official pupposes reqwres my prior
approval on all occasions.

| ANNABLIGHMP
Premier of Queensland

Guidelines for the Use of Government Aireraft for Official Transport May 201 2vel 20
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
. Queensland Reconstruction Authority and—the—@emms&ener—fer—the
in carrying out official dutieg
and fulfilling official responsibilities in relation fo the functions and
activities of the Office of Governor, a Minister's Portfolio, Government;

or the Queensland Reconstruction Authority -erthe QueenslandFlo

: o f lnguing
1.2  Staff, Public Servants and the Media

1.2.1 Governor's staff, Ministerial staff, Public Servants and/members of the
Media are not permitted to travel on the aircraft unless accompanying .-
the Governor or Minister.

1.2.2 However, in circumstances where it is considered cost effective and
expeditious for the Governor or Minister to lgave oy'board A flight at a
place other than Brisbane, staff, public servanis or the media may
travel unaccompanied for a portion of the journey-subjéct to approval -
of the Premier_or the Premier's delegates. In these circumstances the
most senicr staff member on board is40 assume responsibility from the
Minister or Governor.

1.2.3 The Head of the Queensland Retonstriction Althority may travel on
the aircraft unaccompanied bydhe Governor or’a Minister.

1.2.4 The Commissioner for the Quaensiand Floods Commission-of«-

W&ma%&mmﬁm%unaeeemaaﬂed—bﬁh&%veﬂwem

-7 Formatted: Indent: Left: 1.27 cm,
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+ - -~ Formatted: Indent: Left: 1.27 cm,
1.3 Guests of the Governor or Minister

1.3.1 Subject to the approval of the Premier, the Governor, Minister or; Head
of the Queensland Recenstruction Authority er-the-Commissionerfor
the Queenstafd-Floods-GCommission—of-tnguink-may be accompanied
by those rien-Government persons whose attendance they believe on
reasonab'e grounds-will assist in the performance of the task for which
the use-cfan aircrafi-is’being requested.

1.4 Apnaal Report
141 A full_and comprehensive statement on the activities of the

Governmenb ) Air Wing shall be included in each Annual Report of the
Department of the Premier and Cabinet.

Guidelines for the Use of Government Aircralt for Official Transport May 2012reh 2811
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1.6.1

1.5.2

Consumption and Carriage of Alcoholic Beverages on
Government Air Wing Aircraft .

The carriage and resgonsibleer consumpticn of alcoholic beverages on
Government Air Wing Aircraft is ret permitted, subject to the conditicns
in paragraphs 1.56.2 and 1.5.3 below.

o ——‘[ Formatted: Indent: Left: 1.27 cm, ]

15141.6.3 Carriage and consumption -of alcohol in certain aberiginal

2.0

2.1

3.0

3.1

4.0

4.1

5.0

5.1

511

The Government Air Wing provides a limited supply of alcohol for - /)% bullets or numbering
service during flights.  Alcoholic beverages should be consurfied. %
responsibly, having regard to air and workplace health and safety
requirements and is only to be permitted with the specific appioval of
the Premier, Governor or Minister travelling on the individual flight.

< - = 77 Formatted: List Paragraph, Left, No
bullets or numbering

communities is subject to restriction. Prior to departure for, or arrival
at. any Aboriginal community, all alcohol is to be  remgyved from
Government Air Wing aircraft.

. PURPOSE

The Guidelines for the Use of Government Aircraft for Officidl Transport
set out the procedures to be followed when regquesting official travel for
the Governor, Ministers_ and;, the Head of “thg /Queensland
Reconstruction Authority and-the Commissioner for-the Queensland
Heed&@emmssm%qmpy—on fixed-wing aircraft operated by the -

Government Air Wing.
APPLICATION OF THE GUIDEVINES
The Guidelines apply to the “Governoy, /Ministers, Head of the

Queensland . Reconstruction “Autharity,/ Gemmissiener—for—the
Queensiand-Floods-Cemmissioh-oHreatirr-and their respective staff.

ADMINISTRATilON OF THE.GUIDELINES

The Guidelines are administered on behalf of the Premier by the
Government Air Wing, State Affairs, Governance Division, Department
of the Premier'and Cabinet.

INTRODUCTION.

Background

The /Government, Air Wing provides fixed-wing services to meet
efmergency and other specified. aviation needs of the community and
the Gavernment. These services include Orgarn Transplant Retrievals,
Search and-Rescue (SAR), Counter Disaster Operations (CDO) and
Official Transport. The Air Wing comprises the following two fixed-wing
aircraft, both located at the Brishane airport -

Guidelines for the Use of Government Aircraft for Official Trausport May 201 2¢ch 2011
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Hawker B50XP Jet
Beech King Air 350

5.1.2 The Guidelines include the following attachments -

Aftachment 1 - Head Office and Government Air Wing Locations
Aftachment 2 - Aircraft types and capabilities
Attachment 3 - Application for Use of Aircraft

5.2 Allocation of Aircraft

5.2.1 An overriding principle for the allocation of aircrafi is that first priority
will always be given to emergency tasks. All other requests foruse will
normally be processed in the order in which they are receivea” An
approved request may be cancelled at short notice if an emergericy
task eventuates (eg. the Hawker 850XP Jet is dsed—fer_organ
transplant retrieval tasks and, as such, these short-notice fiights Will
take precedence over all other arrangements) and aircraftmay be re-
allocated by the Chief Pilot. where no changé of passenger or
destination is required.

52.2 If conflicting aircraft requirements occur, ~forv/ gxample, between
Ministers, ministerial staff are to negotiate priorities. znd advise the
Administration Officer, Government Air Wing,/State Affairs
{Governance), Department of the Premier and Cabinet, accordingly.

5.2.3 In the case of urgent maintenanze/problems sueh as failure on start
up, aircraft may be re-allocated by the/Chief Piiot where no change of
passenger or destination is required.

5.3 Consfraints
5.3.1 Alternative Modes of Travel

Alternative modes of travel, including commercial airlines, are to be
utilised wherever_possible. Government aircraft are not to be a
substitute for othver-means of travel and should only be used when
alternative means are_net available or are inadequate to service official
requirements.

Due to the substantial time constraints placed on the Premier, Deputy
Premier—and Treasurzr,—use of commercial airlines will rarely be
practical angd need not be considered as a prerequisite to booking
governmentiaircraft for the Premier, Deputy Premier and Treasurer.

5.3.2 Servicind Electorate Needs

The use of Government aircraft for travel to, from and within a i
Minister's electorate is only permitted if such travel is related to the
discharge of a Minister's official portfolio responsibilities {see para. 1.1)
and not to service electorate needs.

Guidclines for the Use of Government Airceaft for Official Transport May 201 2reh 2041
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5.3.3 One-Way Travel and Empty Sectors

It is uneconemical for aircraft to operate a sector without passengers or
on the basis on a one-way flight {ie. travel to or from Brisbane empty).
Approval will not be granted for flights of this nature, unless exceptional
circumstances exist. Occasional empty sectors may be required foy
operational purposes, i.e. refuelling or security of the aircraft.

5.3.4 Pilot Duty Hours

Civil Aviation legislation provides guidance on the duty and fiight time
a pilot may undertake. Air Wing pilot duty hours are normally limited to
10 hours duty in any one day. On rare occasions, the Chief Pilot'may /
authorise an extension of duty hours if it is considered that safety wili
not be compromised. (See also para. 6.84.2)

6.0 REQUESTS FOR THE USE OF AIRCRAFT FOR'OFFICIAL. TRAVEL
6.1 Booking Enquiries

6.1.1 The Administration Officer, Government Air Wing,/State Affairs,
Department of the Premier and Cabinet, is the officer.fesponsible for
aircraft bookings. Bookings for the aircraft are to he~made through that
officer as early as possible (Telephone; 3898 9500}/ Aircraft may have
been booked previously or be dpravailable-for @ range of reasons
including scheduled maintenance,

6.2 Application Form

6.2.1 Following verbal advice frem the | Administration Officer that an aircraft
is available on the designated/date and time, a formal written request
must be made immediately fo that Officer. Requests are to be
submitted on the Application for Use of Aircraft, all sections of which .
must be completed, including/ "not applicable” notations where -
appropriate. The form is to be faxed to the Administration Officer at
least five (5) calendar days prior to the day of the proposed flight. The
fax numberis3898 9507

8.2.2 The Applfication must be accompanied by a copy of the Governor's,
Minister's-or,—the Head of the Queensland Reconstructlon Authorlty s
or-Cormmissioner-forthe-Queensiand-Flo
fulVitinerapy fer-the engagement for which the use of an aircraft is being
sought. Rédquests must be signed by the Minister or a Senior Policy
Adviser
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8.2.3 All persons, including members of the media, who are travelling in
government aircraft must be clearly identified on the Appficafion for
official reporting purposes.

68.2.4 For non-Government passengers; an explanation must be provided on
the Appflication as to the reasons for those passengers being included
on the flight.

6.2.5 On receipt, the Administration Officer, will submit the Application to the
Office of the Premier for consideration.

6.3  Approval for Aircraft Use

6.3.1 The Premier, or the Premiers’ Delegates, are responsible for approving ///
the use of Government aircraft operated by the Air Wing. Flights will_*
not proceed until approval is granted. Each requést witonly be
approved if the Premier considers that the circumstance\warranis-the
use of Government aircraft.

6.3.2 The Chief Pilot is authorised to approve short/hotice flights iny support
of theé organ retrieval program conducted by the Depaftment of Health,
Queenslanders Donate, short notice_Search and Rescue/and Counter
Disaster flights, Queensland Reconstruction Authority-flights, and pilot
training and checking flights conducted for Air Wing piiets.

6.3.3 The Office of the Premier will informthe Official Secrétary, Government
House,; the Office of the requegting Minister~¢r'the Reconstruction
Authority—the-Queensland-Reconsiructior-Authoiity-or the-Queensland

{ssi irg, “that/approval has or has not been
granted. If approved, the Office of.the Premiér will also provide a copy
of the approved Application to the Admiristration Officer, Government
Air Wing.

6.3.4 Following flight approvail;.at.arfangements in regard to flight planning,
itineraries, catering, etc., are.to-be made direct with the Administration -
Officer, Government Air Wing (Telephone 389 89500).

6.3.5 If a flight itineraiy is chahged subsequent to approval by the Premier it
is necessary for a further Applicalion setting out the revised itinerary to
be submitted- for_the Premiers consideration (see also paragraph
6.4.32).

6.3.6 All passengers are expected to arrive at the Air Wing at feast 15
mirilies pricrto-the approved departure time. Changes to the road
system at And near Brisbane can lead to extensive traffic delays.

6.4 The need-to provide updated details to the Air Wing

6.4.1 For flight planning purposes, the pilot-in-command heeds to be fully
informed of the desired departure and arrival fimes for all flights. The

Guidelines for the Use of Government Aircraft for Official Transport May 208 2rel 2041
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pilot's planning can then compensate for predicied winds, adverse

weather, prohable Air Traffic Control delays, efc. which could affect .

times by as much as 20 per cent. In some circumstances, an earlier :

departure time may he appropriate especially where an arrival time is

critical (eg. te ensure the Governor's or Minister's arrival time at an
. official function).

6.4.2 Unusual flight profiles, such as a fly-over of government facilities, must’
be cleared in advance by the Chief Pilot. . Airspace and operaticnhal
constraints can affect such requests.

6.4.3 It is essential for the Office of Govemer, Minister's Office to submitio
the Air Wing an up-to-date copy of the itinerary, names_eof all
passengers and desired/essential timings for all flights on the mofning /
of the working day preceding the actual flight. These details must/e
faxed to Air Wing on fax 3898 9507.

6.4.4 An up-to-date copy of the itinerary, names of all passengers and
desired/essential timings for all flights undertaken on behalf of the
Queensland Reconstruction Authority and—he’ Quéensland—Floods
‘Commission-ef-nguinshould be faxed to the Air/Wing ofy fax 3898

9507 as soon as practicable.

6.5 Luggage

6.5.1 Any arrangements required for luggage and cargo/are the responsibility
of the most senior ministerial staff/member-traveiling. Both Air Wing
aircraft have limited baggage storage facilities and carriage of unusual
or bulky items may be restficted where the maximum number of
passengers are to be carried.

6.5.2 Many items suitable for/carriage/ by ground transport are not suitable
for carriage by air, indldding many itéms that are considered goods
dangerous for air cardage/ (Dangerous Goods).  Civil Aviation
legislation restricts the carriage of such items and Air Wing pilots must
refuse to carry certain such Dangerous Goods. Prior contact with the
Air Wing is required.if doubt exists as to the smtabmty of items for
carriage by air, :

6.6 Provision of Catering

6.6.1 Tea, Coffes, water, seit drinks and light snacks are carried on Air Wing
aircrafi at all times. Limited catering can be provided where flights of
mare thatofie-hoyrs duration occur over the normal meal hours of:

2 Breakfast 06:00 - 07:30
b.~Lunch 12:00 - 13:00
¢. Dinner 17:30 - 19:00 .
Guidelines for the Use of Gavernment Aircraft for Official Transport WIH)T-ZCHZHII—IQ-H-
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6.6.2 Catering facilities are very limited at many aerodromes visited by Air
Wing aircraft. Limited shacks and sandwiches will be provided where
possible, within the limitation of the safe storage and handling of
foodstuffs.

- 6.6. equests for special catering should be made at the time of booking to
6.6.3 R ts fi ial cateri hould b de at the ti f booking t
establish the viabi!ity of such requests. Due to the limitations of safe
food storage in Air Wing aircraft, not all specnai requests may be abie

|

to be met. L N
\ ik ‘Formatted: List Paragraph, Left, No
' 6.6.4_Limited service of alcoholic beverages is also available in accordance < hpljets or numbering
with the policy referred to under paragraph 1.5. 5
5663 ) . +— (,,1 Formatted: Indent: Left: 1.27 cm, ]
No builets or numbering

6.7 Cancelled Bookings

6.7.1 The Air Wing is to be advised as soon as possible if ‘a\flight is-to_be
cancelled. If a booking is cancelled it is hecessary to recomimence the
process and regain the approval of the Premief prior tofarranging -
another flight.

6.8 . Aircrew Accommodation

- 6.8.1 Accommodation for pilots is to be arranged by thé Government
House/Minister's Office_or; Queensland. Reconstruction Authority—or
Queenstand Floods Commission—of Inquiry-concéped. Single room -
accommodation is required. Crewing is 2 pliets-pef aircraft.

| 6.87.20n those occasions when pilots-are/réquirgd’to be on duty for more
than 10 hours on any one day. théy may require, and should be
provided with if requested, day tse ofaceommodation.

7.0 SECURITY ACCESS TCAIRPORT
71 Government AirWing - Brisbane Airport

7.1.1 All access tg the Government Air Wing is through security gates
controlled by the Air Wing.

7.1.2 Once a ¢léarance has been given by the Air Wing, all personnel must
proceed—directly to,~and remain within the Government Air Wing
building. “Depending on security circumstances, vehicle assess to the
Air'Wing may-not be permitted. In such circumstances, the adjacent
enclosed Zar park may be utilised.-Under-no-circumstance-are vehicles
permitted—on-the—tarmae-_Vehicle access fo the tarmac is limited and
subject fo.security restrictions. Vehicle access {0 the tarmac must be
pre_ arranged through the Air Wing.
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7.1.3 Access to the hangar and tarmac is restricted to those holding
appropriate Air Side ldentification Cards {ASIC). Persons not holding
an ASIC requiring access to the hangar or tarmac must be escorted by
Air Wing personnel holding an ASIC.

Guidelines for the Use of Government Aireraft for Official Transport May 2012reh-2041
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ATTACHMENT 1

HEAD OFFICE AND GOVERNMENT AIR WING LOCATIONS

GOVERNMENT AIR WING

Location Government Air Wing
Qantas Maintenance Area Hangar 1
Pandanus Avenue
Eagle Farm Q 4007
{On the side opposite to the Domestic
Terminal)

Postal Address PO Box 1018, Eagle Farm, (<4009

Telephone Administration Officer |
389 89500

Facsimile 389 89507

HEAD OFFICE

Location Office of/thie Execlitive Director, State
Affairs ‘
Govefnance’Bivision
Departmerit/of the' Premier and Cabinet
Executive Building -
160-George-Sircet
BRISBANE Q 4001

. Postal Address PO/Box 15185,

CITVY EAST Q 4002
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ATTACHMENT 2

AIRCRAFT TYPES AND CAPABILITIES

" AIRCRAFTASSETS |  FixedWing = | FixedWing =
AIRCRAFT TYPE Hawker 850XP Jet Beech King Air 350
BASED AT Brisbane - Government | Brisbane - Government
: Air Wing Air Wing |
POWERED BY 2 Jet Engines 2 Turbo-prop Engiites
NUMBER OF 8 8 — 9. However,/the
PASSENGERS number may bé (imited
to 8 if luggage is
required to be carried,
NOMINAL RANGE* 2500NM 1600NM
4600KM ‘| 3000KM vl
FLIGHT TIMES 400NM/HR 270NM/HR
{APPRCX) 740KM/HR 500KM/HR
AIRCRAFT CREWING | 2 Pilots 2 Pilots
AIRCRAFT CALL VH-SGY VYH-SEQ
SIGNS
AIRCRAFT PHONE 0428 783 351 0428 783/362
NUMBERS ' ‘
* Range is dependent on task nature and numher of/passengers.
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ATTACHMENT 3 -

Department of the Premier and Cabinet
Application for Use of Aircraft

Details of Applicant:
Officeholder:

P

Queensland
Government

Contact: , Tel:

Position: Fax:

Purpose of
Trip/s:

COMMERCIAL FLIGHTS AVAILABLE TO MEET TIMES REQUIRED!

Justification | Alternative use of travel has been investigated but is unsuitable becalise — NO

Reason for Application:

Proposed Flight Departure Details: Proposed Flight Atrivai Details:
Date : Time Location Date Time Location
i _
] L
Date Time Details /

Critical Deadlines:

List of Passengers: X )
Title / |nitials { Surname Position / Organigation — Tra\aigg between Locations
Explanatory Note: 1. / L
2,
Authorisation: N\ ,
Officer: Signature: Date:
Position:

Certification | | certify that this Application is for
: Official Travel and’ no suitable
alternative mode-of travel is available.

Itinerary: A copy of the Governor's/Minister's _
ltingrary attached: Yes No (Circle as
appropriate}

Approval;

Aircraft allocated: Lise of aircraft
approved:
Hawker Jet / King Air Yes No Premier
Guidelines for the Use of Government Aireraft for Official Transport May 20122011
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FOREWORD

The Government Air Wing provides fixed wing air services to assist in meeting
the demanding travel commitments of the Premier, the Governor and
Ministers. The Air Wing will also, when available, coniribuie to meeting the

emergency and other sgecified aviation needs of the community.

These Guidelines for the Use of Government Aircraft for Gfficial Transpor
incorporate the management processes fto be followed when requesting
official travel on fixed wing aircraft operated by the Government Air Wing:
Travel may be approved for Ministers, -fer-the Governor—Ministers and;‘the ./
Head of the Queensland Reconstruction Authority. -and-the-Comimissionerfor w7

the—@emensland—ﬁeed&@e#msm%ﬁnq&m%ﬂ%ed—w%g—aﬁmmﬁ%pe@ed

The aircraft are-not-a-substitute-for-nermalcommercialdravel-and-should only
be used when alternative means of trawi are/not avaitable or are inadequate
to service off|c|ai reqguirements,

An—evemdmgppme@e%&ﬂ%@e&%% irgraft-is-that first-priority will

The use of Government alrcraft for_jofficial purposes requires my prior
approval on all occasions.

Campbell Newman
ANNA-BLIGH-NIR
Premier of Queensland

b ‘[_Formatted: Indent: Left: 1.25 cm )
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1.0 POLICY

14  Official Travel

I.1.1 Government fixed-wing aircraft are available_for use by the Premier—
the Governor, Ministers and the Head of the Queensland

Reconstructnon Authonty suqueet—te—eeﬁan—eend&ms—iepuse—by—thr

GCommissien-ofdnguin~in carrying out official duties and fulfilling officiat

responsibilities in relation fo the functions and aclivities of these

" offices. Use of the aircraft is subject to the provisions /df these
GUIdeImes @#;eeaa#@evemepa%m&ste;sﬁeﬁfehe—@evemmmi—me
- -

- ion ata 0 J a¥ata

1.2  Staff, Public Servants and the Media

| 1.2.1 Gevernors—staff,_Governors staff— Ministerial /staff, Publlc, Servants
and members of the Media are not permitted/td travel on the aircraft
unless accompanying the Governer or Minister;

1.2.2 However, in circumstances where it is considered_cost/effective and

| expeditious for the Governereor_the Governor gor-Minister to leave or

board a flight at a place other than Erishane, staff;public servants or

the media may travel unaccompziied for-a portion of the journey

) subject to-approval of the Premier or the Prémier’s delegates. In these

circumstances the most senior/staff iegmber on board is to assume

| responsibility_for adherence to theseg Guidelines from the Minister or
Governor.

1.2.3 The Head of the Quéensland Reconstriction Authority may travel on
the aircraft unaccompanied by/the Governor or a Minister.

4.2.4 The Commissionerfor-the-Queensland Floods-Commission-of-lnquins« - - ~{ Formatted: Na bullets or numbering

7= WJ[ Formatted: indent; Left: 0 c¢m, First

1.3 13— Guests of the Governor_or Minister «._ \ine: O cm, Tab stops: Not at 1.25 cm
—or-Ministey - Formatted: Outline numbered +
; \ Levek: 2 + Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, ...

\ + Start at: 2 + Alignment: Left +
1.3.1 Subject to'the approval of the Premier, the Governor, Minister or; Head  }, :| Aligned at: 0.cm + Tab after: 1.24

of the-Queensland Réconstruction Authority orthe-Commissionerfor )\l indentat L24cn
the Qdeensland-Floods-Commission—of Inguinsmay be accompanied
by’those non-Gevernment persons whose attendance they believe on
réasonablé grounds will assist in the performance of the task for which
the use 6f an aircraft is being requested.

Formatted: indent: Left: 1.24 cm,
Tab stops: Not at 1,25 cm

1.4  Annual Report
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141 A full and comprehensive statement on the activites of the B
Government Air Wing shall be included in each Annual Report of the
Department of the Premier and Cabinet.

1.5 Consumption and Carriage of Alcoholic Beverages on
Government Air Wing Aircraft ‘

1.5.1 The carriage and responsibleer consumption of alcoholic beverages on
Government Air Wing Aircraft is ret permitted, subject o the conditions
in paragraphs 1.5.2 and 1.5.3 below.

bl N '|r rormatted; Indent: Left: 1.27 cm, ]
1.5.2 The Government Air Wing provides g_limited supply of alcdhol for (Mo bulets or numbering
service during flights.  Alcoholic_beverages should be ¢onstimed
responsibly, having regard to air and workplace health and-safety
requirements and is only to be permitied with the specific approvalof
the Pramier, Governor or Minister travelling on the individual-flight.

- ‘[ Formatted: List Paragraph, Left, No J

451153 Cariage and consumption of alcohol in_certain/aboriginal bullets or numbering
communities is subiect to restriction. Prior to départure for{ or arrival :

at, anvy Aboriginal community, all alcohol is Ao bé) removed from

Government Air Wing aircraft.

2.0 PURPOSE

2.1 The Guidelines for the Use of Governimeant Aircraft for Official Transport
set out the procedures to be followed when requesting official travel for
the-Gevernor—Ministers—the Head of the Giusensland-Reconstrustion
Autherty —and—the Commissioaer—4ar—the~ Quesnsland—Floeds
Gommission—of tnauiny—on(_fixedwing aircraft operated by "the

Government Air Wing.
3.0 APPLICATION OF THE GUIDELINES

3.1 The Guidelines apply te_the Asovernor,-the Governor, Ministers, the
Head of the Queensland Recenstruction Authority, Qemmrs&ener—fe\t S
the-Queensland -Floods Commission—of Inquin—and their respective
staff.

‘4.0 ADMINISTRATION OF THE: GUIDELINES
41 The Guidelines are administered on behalf of the Premier by the
[ Governmne 1—State-AﬁawéeveHWDepartment
of the Premier and Cabinet.
5.0 INTRODUCTION
5.1 Background

5.1.1 The Government Air Wing provides fixed-wing services to assist in "
meeting the demanding travel commitments of the Premier, the -

| Guidelines for the Use of Government Aireraft for Official Transport May 2012¢ch 2011 RURNRE N
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Governor and Mfmsters meet-emergency-and-other-specified-aviation
- The Air Wing will also,

when available, contribute to meeting the emergency and other
specified aviation needs of the community These services include
Organ Transplant Retrievals, Search and Rescue {SAR), Counter
Disaster Operations (CDO) and Official Transport. The Air Wing
comprises the following two fixed-wing aircraft, both located at the

Brisbane airport - : ’

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

i 5.2.1 Ar-everriding-principle—for-the—allocation-of-aircraftAs that4irst priority
—All atherrequests for use will
normally be processed in the order in WhICh they are’ received. An
approved request may be cancelled at short notice if/an emergency
task ‘eventuates (eg. the Hawker 850XP Jet is, used for organ
transplant retrieval tasks—and—as—suehy-these-shor-netice—flights—will
fehgemenis) and aircraft may be re-
allocated by the Chief Pilot in/consuliation with the Premier's office

where no change of passengei dr.destinatior/is required.

5.2.2 If conflicting aircraft regirerents- occur, for example, between
Ministers, ministerial staff are)t¢ negotiate priorities and advise the
Administration  Officef,{ Government Air Wing, State Affairs
{Governance), Department-af the Premier and Cabinet, accordingly.

5.2.3 In the case of urgent maintenance problems such as failure on start ... ..
up, aircraft may be re-allocated by the Chief Pilot where no change of .. .o
passenger ordéstination.is required. f

5.3 Constraints

5.3.1 . Alternative Modes of Tiavel

Alternative’ modeg of travel, including commercial airlines, are to be
utilised wherever possible. Government aircraft are—netto-be g
substittiéforother-means—of-travel-and-should only be used when
alternative_means of travel are not available or are inadequate to
service official requirements.

Due to the substantial time constraints placed on the Premier, Deputy
Premier and Treasurer, ;—use of commercial airlines will rarely be
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practical and need not be considered as a prerequisite to booking -
| Ggovernment aircraft for the Premier, Deputy Premier and Treasurer. -

5.3.2 Servicing Electorate Needs

The use of Government aircraft for travel to, from and within a
Minister's electorate is only permitted if such travel is related to the’/ -
discharge of a Minister's official portfolio responsibilities (see para. 11y
and not to service electorate needs. By

5.3.3 One-Way Travel and Empty Sectors

It is uneconomical for aircraft to operate a sector without passengersor

on the basis on a one-way flight (ie. travel to or from Brisbane ermnpty).

Approval will not be granted for flights of this nature, unless exceptionai

circumstances exist. Occasional empty sectors may he required for
| operational purposes, i.e. refuelling or security of the aircraft.

5.3.4 Pilot Duty Hours
Civil Aviation legislation provides guidance gndhe duty andflight time
a pilot may undertake. Air Wing pilot duty hotirs are’normally limited to
10 hours duty in any one day. On rare occasions, the Chief Pilot may

authorise an extension of duty hours if it is considered/that safety will
] not be compromised. {See also para. §.8%.2)

6.0 REQUESTS FOR THE USE OF/AIRCRAFT FOR OFFICIAL TRAVEL

6.1 Booking Enquiries

6.1.1 The Administration Officer, Governmenht Air Wing, State Affairs,
Department of the Premier and Cabinat, is the officer responsible for
aircraft bookings. Bookings.foi' the aircraft are to be made through that
officer as early as possible (Telephone; 3898 9500). Aircraft may have
been booked previously or be unavailable for a range of reasons
including scheduted-maintenance.

6.2 Application’ Form

6.2.1 Foltowing verbaladvice from the Administration Officer that an aircraft
is availaible on the designatéd date and time, a formal written request
must /be “made immediately to that Officer. Requests are to be
submitted/cn-the_Application for Use of Aircraft, all sections of which
must._be/ completed, including “not applicable® notations where
appropriate. The form is to be faxed to the Administration Officer at
least five-(5),calendar days prior to the day of the proposed flight. The
fax number is 3898 9507.

6.2.2 The Application must be accompanied by a copy of the Governor's,
| Minister's_or —the Head of the Queensland Reconstruction Authority’s
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fuII |t|nerary for the engagement for WhICh the use of an alrcraft is belng
sought. Requests must be signed by the Minister or a Senior Policy
| Adviser,

6.2.3 All persons, including members of the media, who are travelling i /.
‘ government aircraft must be clearly identified onh the Appfication for
official reporting purposes.

6.2.4 For non-Government passengers, an explahation must be provided on
the Application as to the reasons for those passengers being included
on the flight.

| 6.2.5 On receipt, the Administration Officer; will submit the Application to the
Office of the Premier for consideration.

6.3 - Approval for Ai]_'craft Use

6.3.1 - The Premier, or the Premiers’ Delegates, are reésponsible forapproving
the use of Government aircraft operated by/the Air’Wing./Flights will
not proceed until approval is granted. Each vequest/will only be
approved if the Premier considers that the circumsiange/warrants the
use of Government aircraft.

| 6.3.2 -The Chief Pilot is authorised to app"ove shart notice flights in support

: of the organ retrieval program cordicted by the/Depariment of Health,

] Queenslanders Donate, short notice _Séarch and Rescue and Counter‘
' Disaster flights, Queensland Recanstridction/Authority flights, and pilot
training and checking flights conductad foi' Air Wing pilots. The Chief
Pilot should where practicable. consult with' the Premier's Office before
approving these short notige flights.

6.3.3 The Office of the Premier will inform the Official Secretary, Government
House_or; the Office of the requesting Minister_or the Queensland
Reconstruction Authontv%h&(a%ens#anekReeenstFuetmnﬁﬂvuthem%e%
the Queensland Floeds-Commission-of Inguiry,- tha_ithat approval has
or has not been granted. If approved, the Office of the Premier will
also provide/ d copy of the approved Appllcatlon to the Administration
Officer, Government Air Wing..

6.3.4 Following-flight appreval, all arrangements in regard to flight planning,
itineraries,, catering, etc., are to be made direct with the Administration
Offiger, Government Air Wing (Telephone 389 89500).

6.3.5 If a fiightlitinerary is changed subsequent to approval by the Premier it
is necessary,for a further Application setting out the revised itinerary to

1 be submitted for the Premier's consideration (see also paragraph
5.4.32). . ,
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6.3.6 All passengers are expected to arrive at the Air Wing at least 15

6.4

6.4.1

6.4.2

6.4.3

6.4.4

6.5

6.5.1

6.5.2

minutes prior to the approved departure time. Changes to the road
system at and near Brisbane can lead to extensive traffic delays

The need to provide updated details to the Air Wing

For flight planning purposes, the pilot-in-command needs to be fully
informed of the desired departure and arrival times for all flights. The -
pilot's planning can then compensate for predicted winds, adveérse. -/
weather, probable Air Traffic Control delays, etc. which could affect <
times by as much as 20 per cent. In some circumstances, an earlier
departure time may be appropriate especially where an arrivai time-is
critical (eg. to ensure the Governor's or Minister's arrival time_at an
official function).

Unusual fhght proﬂles such as a fly-over of government facilities, must ,
be cleared in advance by the Chief Pilot. Airspace and operational
constraints can affect such requests.: '

It is essential for the Office of Governor;or Minister's Gifice to submit to
the Air Wing an up-to-date copy of the  itinerary, names of all
passengers and desired/essential timings for-all flights or the morning
of the working day preceding the actual flight. These details must be
faxed to Air Wing on fax 3898 9507.

An up-to-date copy of the itinerary, names of/ail passengers and
desired/essential timings for all Alights underiakén on behalf of the
Queensland Reconstruction Adthority’ and—the Queensiand Floeds -
GCommission-of-taquiry-should be faxed to the Air Wing on fax 3898 -

9507 as soon as practicable.

Luggage

Any arrangements required-for'luggage and carge are the responsibility -
of the most senior ministerial staff member travelling. Both Air Wing
aircraft have limited baggage storage facilities and carriage of unusual
or bulky items may be restricted where the maximum number of
passengers afe to becarried. :

Many itemg suitable for carriage by ground transport are not suitable
for carriage by air~Nncluding many items that are considered goods
dangercus. for air-carriage (Dangerous Goods). Civil Aviation
legislation restricts the carriage of such items and Air Wing pilots must
refuse to carry-certain such Dangerous Goods. Prior contact with the
Air Wing/is required if doubt exists as to the suitability of items for .
carriage‘oy air. !

6.6 Provision of Catering

Guidelines for the Use of Government Aireraft for Official Transport May 2012reh-201F
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6.6.1 Tea, Coffee, water, soft drinks and light snacks are carried on Air Wing
aircraft at all times. Limited catering can be provided where flights of
more that one hours duration occur over the normal meal hours of:

a. Breakfast 06:00 — 07:30
b. Lunch 12:00 - 13:00
c. Dinner . 17:30-19:00

6.6.2 Catering facilities are very limited at many aerodromes visited by Air_ /' /.
_Wing aircraft. Limited snacks and sandwiches will be provided where . o/ /0
possible, within the limitation of the safe storage and handling of
foodstuffs,

| 6.6.3 Requests for special catering should be made at the time of boeking to
establish the viability of such requests. Due to the limitations of safe
- food storage in Air Wing aircraft, not all special requests may_be able

to be met.

) Rl ‘l Formatted: List Paragraph, Left, No
8.6-36.6.4 _ Limited service of alcoholic beverages/js alsc \available in bullets or rumbering
accordance with the policy referred to under paragraph1.5. ;

6.7 Cancelled Bookings

6.7.1 The Air Wing is to be advised as soon as possibleif a flight is to be
cancelled. If a booking is cancelled itis-necessary to recommence the
process and regain the approval of the Rremigr/prior to arranging
another flight. . '

6.8 Aircrew Accommodation

6.8.1 Accommodation for pilots”is to be_airanged by the Government
House/Minister's Office/of; Queensland Reconstruction Authority—er
Queensland Floods Commission—of-inquiny concerned.  Single room
accommodation is required../Crewing is 2 pilots per aircraft.

| 6.87.20n those occasions when pilots/are required to be on duty for more
than 10 hours “en~any one day they may require, and should be
provided with/if requested, day use of accommodation.

7.0 SECURITY ACCESS TO AIRPORT

71 Government Air Wing - Brisbane Airport

7.1.1 Al access fo the Government Air Wing is through security gates
contrelled by the Air Wing.

7.1.2 Once a clearance has been given by the Air Wing, all personnel must
proceed directly to, and remain within the Government Air Wing
building. Depending on security circumstances, vehicle assess to the

Guidelines for the Use of Government Aircraft for Official Transport May 2012reh 2011
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Air Wing may not be permitted. In such circumstances, the adjacent
enclosed car park may be utilised Underno-circumstance are-vehicles
permitted-on-the-tarmac-_Vehicle access to the tarmac is limited and
subject to security restrictions. Vehicle access to the tarmac must be
pre arranged through the Air Wing.

7.1.3 Access to the hangar and tarmac is restricted to those holding
appropriate Air Side Identification Cards (ASIC). Persons not holding
an ASIC requiring access to the hangar or tarmac must be escorted by
Air Wing personnel holding an ASIC.

Guidelines for the Use of Government Aireralt for Official Transport May 2012¢eh 204
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ATTACHMENT 1

HEAD OFFICE AND GOVERNMENT AIR WING LOCATIONS

GOVERNMENT AIR WING
Location Gavernment Air Wing
- Qantas Maintenance Area Hangar 1
Pandanus Avenue
Eagle Farm Q 4007 ,
{(On the side opposite to the Domestic
Terminal)
Postal Address PO Box 1018, Eagle Farm, Q4003
Telephone Administration Officer
389 89500
Facsimile 389 89507
HEAD OFFICE
Location Office of ihe Executive Difector, State
Affairs _ :
Govemance/Division
Deparimerit of the’Premier and Cabinet
Executive Building
100-George-Strget
BRISBANE Q 4001
Postal Address POBox 15185,
CITY EAST Q 4002

Guidelines for the Use of Government Aireraft for Official Transport May 2012¢eh 2011 :
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ATTACHMENT 2

AIRCRAFT TYPES AND CAPABILITIES

 AIRCRAFTASSETS |  FixedWing =~ |  FixedWing
AIRCRAFT TYPE -| Hawker 850XP Jet Beech King Air 350 /
BASED AT " | Brisbane - Government | Brisbane - Government

Air Wing Air Wing
POWERED BY 2 Jet Engines 2 Turbo-prop Enginies
NUMBER OF 8 8 — 9. However/the
PASSENGERS number may be limited

to 8 if luggage is
: required to be carried,

NOMINAL RANGE* 2500NM 1600NM

4600KM 3000KM
FLIGHT TIMES 400NM/HR o1 270NM/HR
(APPROX) 740KM/HR 500KM/HR
AIRCRAFT CREWING | 2 Pilots 2 FPilots
AIRCRAFT CALL VH-SGY ' /H-SGQ
SIGNS '
AIRCRAFT PHONE 0428 783 351 0428 783/3562
NUMBERS
* Range is dependent on task nature and number of/passengers.
Guidelines for the Use of Government Aircraft for Official Transport May 2012rel-2011
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‘ ATTACHMENT 3
Department of the Premier and Cabinet
Application for Use of Aircraft
De'talls of Applicant: : _ Queensland
Officeholder: Government . :
Contact: Tel: L
Position: Fax:
Purpose of
Trip/s:

Justification | Alternative use of travel has been investigated but is unsuitable becalise —~ NG
: COMMERCIAL FLIGHTS AVAILABLE TO MEET TIMES REQUIRED

Reason for Application:

Proposed Flight Departure Details: Proposed Flight Arrivai Details:
Date __Time Lacation Date Time I Location -
i7
|
Date Time : Details £

Critical Deadlines: .
List of Passengers: N\

Title / [nitials / Surname Position / Organisation — Travelling/hetween Locations
Explanatory Note: 1. /L
2. :
Authorisation: N
Officer: : Signature: | Date:
Position:

Certification | | certify that this Application isfor

: Official Travel and/no suitable
alternative mode-of iravel is available.
ltinerary: A copy of the Governer's/Minister's

{tinerary attached: Yes No {Circle as
appropriate)
Approval:
Aircraft allocated: l/Use of aircraft
' 1 approved:
!
Hawker Jet ! King Air Yes No Premier
_ Guidelines for the Use of Govermnent Aireraft for Ofiicial Transport - May 2012reh-2011
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Athena Hondroudakis

From: Sharan Bailey <Sharon.Baitey@premiers.qld.gov.au>
Sent: Wednesday, 25 July 2012 2:43 PM

To: ' Athena Hondroudalds .

Subject: RE: GAW Guidelines amendments - alternate versions
Hi Athena

't get the relevant people to contact Kate directly and give her the history

Thanks
Sharon

From: Athena Hondroudalds [mailto: Athena. Hondroudakis@ministerial.qld.gov.au]
Sanl: Wednesday, 25 July 2012 11:57 AM

To: Sharon Bailey

€ Kate Winter

Subject: FW: GAW Guidelines amendments - alternate versions

Hi Sharon,
Kate Winter has emailed me below asking about the amended Guidelines l[emall below).
Would you please be able to give us some background?

Many thanks
Athena

Athena Hondroudakis | Executive Assistant to-the/Chief/of Staff |

(¥ifice of The Hon. Campbell Newmap M | Brewder OF Queensland |
. E-mail: Athena.Hondroudalds@ministerizl.td.gov.au

Phone; (07} 3224 5746 | Fax: (07) 32102187

From: Kate Winter

Sent: Wednesday, 25 July 2012°11:32 AM
Teo: Athena Hondroudalis

Cec: Ben Myers

Subjeck: FW: GAW Guidaliries amendments - alternate versions

Hi Athena,

These are the versians Bep-willwant to review.,

Do you know where thisswame from ie who askad for the changes?
Kind regards,

Kate Winter
Deputy Chief of Staff

Office of the Premier

Level 15 Executive Bullding, 100 George Street, Brishane
Telephone +61 7 3224 7335

Parl House Telephone 461 7 3406 7175

1
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Facsimila 4+ 2213631
MﬂbileCTPI
Email kate,winter@ministerial.gld.gov.au

From: Sharon Balley [malltc:Sharon . Bailey@premiers.qid.gov.au]
Senk: Wednesday, 25 July 2012 11:17 AM

To: Kate Winter

Subject: FW: GAW Guidelines amendments - alternate versions

Hi Kate
Here it is

Sharon

This email is intended only for the addressee. Tts use ig/Yimited to tLhat intended by
the author at the tiwe and it is not
to be distributed without the author's consent.

Unleds otherwise gtated, the State of Queensland accgepts no liakility for the contents
of this email except where

subsequently confirmed in writing. The opinions expreissged An-this email are those of
the author and do not necessarily

represgent the wiews of the State of Queensland/ This email is confidential and may be
subject to a ¢laim of legal privilege.

If you have recelved thisg email in error, please Aotilfy the author and delete this
mesgage immediately.

This email, together with any attacbhéntg, ia intended for the named recipient (s)
only; and may contain privileged and confidential information. If received in error,
vou are asked to inform the sende¥ as gquickly/as possible and delete this email and
any copies of thig from your compuier dystey’ network.

If not an intended recipient Af this email, you must not copy, distribute or take any
action{s) that relies on ity Aany form ot disclosure, modificabtion, distribution and
/or publication of this email is/#dlso prohibited.

Unless stated otherwise, this email represents only the views of the sender and not
the viewsa of the Queensland Government.

Please consider the euviromment, before printing this email.

Thig email is ¥ntended only for the addressee. Its use is limited to that intended by
the author at/fthe tiime and it is not :
to be distributed/without the author's consent.

Unless otherwise stated, the State of Queensland accepts no liability for the contents
-of thig emall except’ where

subsequently confirmed in writing. The opinions expressed in this emall are those of
the author and do not neceggarily

represent the views of the State of Queensland. This email is counfidential and wmay be

gsubject to a c¢laim of legal privileye.

If you have received thig email in error, pleage notify the auther and delete this
message immediately.
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From:

Sent:

To:
Subject: .

Tim Herbert .

Thursday, 26 July 2012 8:13 AM
Kate Winter

Re: a couple of things

Yes Kate - see yoﬁ then and happy to come to you.

- Regards
Tim

Cn 26/07/20_12, at 8:01 AM, "Kate Winter" <Kate.Winter@ministerial.qld.gov.au> wiofe:

Hi Tim,

Sure, does 3pm suit?

Kind regards,

Kate Winter
Deputy Chief of Staff

Office of the Premier

Level 15 Executive Building, 100 George Street, Brishane
Telephone +61 7 3224 7335

Parl House Telephone +61 7 3406 7175

Facsimile +61 7 3221 3631 '

e —

Email kate.winter@ministerial.qld.gov.au

From: Tim Herbert [mailto:Tim.Herbert@premiers.qid.gov.au]
Sent: Wednesday, 25 July 2012 5:34 PM
To: Kate Winter '

~ Subject: a couple of things

Hi Kate,

Do you

just tried to call about a-couple of things:

| hear that you have been given some draft amendments to the GAW guidelines and
are looking far some tackground on this. I'm happy to talk you through them when
you have a moment;

Also, justwant to discuss the GAW publication scheme stats with you as well.

have any time tomorrow morning for a quick chat?

Regards’

Tim

Tim Herbert

Executive Director

State Affairs

Department of the Premier and Cabinet
Ph: 340 43654

Email: Tim. Herbert@premiers.qld.gov.au
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. This email is intended only for the addressee, Its use is limited to that
intended by the author at the time and it is not
to be distributed without the author's consent.

Unless otherwise stated, the State of Queensland accepts no liability for
the contents of this email except where

subsequently confirmed in writing. The opinions expressed in this email
are those of the author and do not necessarily

represent the views of the State of Queensland. This email is confidential
and may be subject to a claim of legal privilege.

If you have received thils email in errcr, please notify thé&/author and
delete this message immediately.

This email, together with any attachments, i3 intendéd fof the named
recipient (s) only; and may contain privileged and confidential
information. If received in error, you are asked to Imform the sender as
quickly as possible and delete this email and any copies/ouf this from your
cemputer system network. :

If . not an intended recipient of this email,, yvou must/ not copy, distribute
or take any acticn(s}) that relies on it; afyy form\df disclosure,
modification, distributicn and /or publigation/of this email is also
prohibited. ' ;

Unléss stated otherwlise, this emall represents gr/ly the views of the
sender and not the views of the Queensland Gowvernment,

Please consider the environment hefore prinfing this email.

This email is intended conly for the addfessge. Its use is limited to that intended by
the author at the time and it ig _not
to be distributed without the Agdthor)s consent,

Unless otherwise stated, the Staté/cf Queensland accepts no liability for the contents
of this email except where

subsequently confirmed inp writing., The opinions expressed in this email are those of
the auther and dc not necessarily

represent the views of/ £he State of Queensland. This email is confidential and may be
subject to a claim of degal privilege.

If you have received this_email in error, please notify the author and delete this
message immediatelsy.
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